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Part I. FINANCIA L INFORMATION
Item 1.

Financial Statements (Unaudited)
ANALOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited in thousands, except share and per share data)
October 31,
2017

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term marketable securities
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $608 and
$752 as of October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, respectively
Inventory
Income tax receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Long-term marketable securities
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets

$

$

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued employee compensation and benefits
Accrued income tax
Accrued warranty
Accrued restructuring charges
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Accrued income taxes, net of current portion
Other long-term liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Guarantees, commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized and
12,486,441 shares issued and outstanding as of October 31, 2017;
30,000,000 shares authorized and 12,467,824 shares issued and
outstanding as of July 31, 2017
Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$

$

96,806
50,555
73,111
131,314
3,909
8,520
364,215
35,539
100,302
24,606
2,344
5,056
5,269
537,331

25,728
15,384
1,293
4,941
1,436
5,479
3,323
4,980
62,564

$

$

$

129,298
18,797
77,587
130,575
4,686
9,762
370,705
26,171
102,676
25,925
2,344
5,168
5,094
538,083

27,179
18,171
708
5,306
2,786
4,774
3,538
4,648
67,110

758
9,375
10,133

734
9,745
10,479

623
158,223
311,569
(5,781)
464,634
537,331

622
157,907
307,104
(5,139)
460,494
538,083

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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July 31,
2017

$

ANALOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share data)
Three Months Ended October 31,
2017
2016

Net revenue:
Product
Engineering
Total net revenue
Cost of sales:
Product
Engineering
Total cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and product development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Restructuring
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

$

Net income per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared and paid per share

105,752
1,123
106,875

120,245
873
121,118

57,972
1,136
59,108
47,767

68,759
723
69,482
51,636

$

15,012
12,405
11,941
535
39,893
7,874
238
8,112
2,453
5,659

$

15,850
18,180
13,621
32
47,683
3,953
(442)
3,511
980
2,531

$
$

0.45
0.45

$
$

0.20
0.20

$

12,473
12,599
0.10

$

12,419
12,616
0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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$

ANALOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Unaudited, in thousands)
Three Months Ended October 31,
2017
2016

Net income
Other comprehensive (loss) income , net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax
Unrecognized gain on pension benefits, net of tax
Unrealized loss on foreign currency forward contracts,
net of tax
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities,
net of tax
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Total comprehensive income

$

$

5,659

2,531

(222)
42

(1,574)
58

(409)

(214)

(52)
(641)
5,018

(1,730)
801

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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$

$

ANALOGIC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited, in thousands)
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Amortization of demo equipment
Provision for excess and obsolescence inventory
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Change in fair value of contingent consideration
(Benefit from) provision for doubtful accounts, net of recovery
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits
Accrued income taxes and income taxes receivable
Other liabilities
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant, and equipment
Purchases of marketable securities
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, and equipment
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of stock pursuant to exercise of stock options,
employee stock purchase plan, restricted stock plans, and
non-employee director stock plan
Repurchase of common stock
Shares repurchased for taxes for vested employee restricted
stock grants
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Dividends paid to shareholders
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Non-cash transfer of demonstration inventory to fixed asset

$

2016
5,659

$

230
5,386
1,983
912
496
(145)
217

1,909
5,536
1,659
456
392
(5)
64
48
(3)

4,455
(1,842)
1,176
(1,195)
(4,703)
714
(212)
1,384
(365)
14,150

19,995
(2,111)
139
2,679
(2,491)
(791)
98
(1,521)
(2,061)
26,523

(2,353)
(44,738)
2,900
473
76
(43,642)

(3,282)
69
(3,213)

466
(952)

$

(1,053)
(1,248)
(2,787)
(213)
(32,492)
129,298
96,806
796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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2,531

2,336
-

$

(826)
5
(1,242)
273
(328)
23,255
118,697
141,952
1,018

ANALOGIC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited, in millions, except share and per share data)
1. Basis of presentation
Throughout this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, unless the context states otherwise, the words “we,” “us,” “our” and “Analogic” refer to Analogic
Corporation and all of its subsidiaries taken as a whole, and “our board of directors” refers to the board of directors of Analogic Corporation.
Our unaudited consolidated financial statements presented herein have been prepared pursuant to the rules of the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, for quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. Preparing financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. We report our financial condition and results of operations on a fiscal year basis ending on July 31st of each
year. The three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016 represent the first quarters of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively.
In our opinion, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments)
necessary for a fair statement of the results for all interim periods presented. The results of operations for the three months ended October 31, 2017 are not
necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full year. These statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2017, or fiscal year 2017, included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC on September 26, 2017. The
year-end balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by generally accepted accounting
principles, or GAAP, in the United States of America.
Consolidation
The unaudited consolidated financial statements presented herein include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
In determining whether we are the primary beneficiary of an entity and therefore required to consolidate, we apply a qualitative approach that determines
whether we have both (1) the power to direct the economically significant activities of the entity and (2) the obligation to absorb losses of, or the right to receive
benefits from, the entity that could potentially be significant to that entity. We have not been required to consolidate the activity of any entity due to these
considerations.
2. Recent accounting pronouncements
Accounting pronouncements issued and recently adopted
Improvements to employee share-based payment accounting
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, “ Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting ,” which amends ASC 718, “ Stock
Based Compensation .” The amendments require that all excess tax benefits be recorded as an income tax benefit or expense in the income statement and be
classified as an operating activity in the statement of cash flows. Entities may also elect to estimate the amount of forfeitures or recognize them as they occur. The
amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016. The standard was effective for us in the first
quarter of fiscal 2018 ending July 31, 2018. Effective August 1, 2017, we adopted ASU 2016-09. We elected to account for forfeitures as they occur and therefore,
share-based compensation expense for the first quarter of fiscal 2018 ended October 31, 2017 has been calculated based on actual forfeitures in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations , rather than our previous approach which was net of estimated forfeitures. Subsequent to adoption, excess tax benefits or deficiencies
from share-based payment awards are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as a component of the Provision for income taxes, whereas these
previously were recognized in Capital in excess of par value (APIC) in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Additionally, subsequent to adoption, we classified any
excess tax benefits or deficiencies as an operating activity in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on a prospective basis , while we previously classified
excess tax benefits or deficiencies within financing activities within the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 resulted in a
cumulative adjustment of a $0.8 million increase to Retained earnings as of August 1, 2017 on a modified retrospective basis.
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Accounting pronouncements issued and not yet effective
Scope of Modification Accounting
In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, “ Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718)”. The standard provides guidance about which
changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require an entity to apply modification accounting. ASU 2017-09 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years, and should be applied prospectively to an award modified on or after the
adoption date. Early adoption is permitted. The standard will be effective for us in the first quarter of our fiscal year ending July 31, 2019. We are currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements.
Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost
In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, “ Compensation — Retirement Benefits (Topic 715)” . The standard improves the presentation of net
periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost by requiring that an employer that offers to its employees defined benefit pension or other
postretirement benefit plans report the service cost component in the same line item or items as other compensation costs arising from services rendered by the
pertinent employees during the period. The other components of net benefit cost are required to be presented in the income statement separately from the service
cost component and outside a subtotal of income from operations, if one is presented. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017,
including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The standard will be effective for us in the fiscal year beginning August 1, 2018.
We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements.
Clarifying the Definition of a Business
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, “Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business.” The amendments
provide the requirements needed for a set of transferred assets and activities to be a business and establish a practical way to determine when a set of transferred
assets and activities is not a business. To be considered a business, an acquisition would have to include an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. An output is the result of inputs and substantive processes that provide goods or services to customers, other
revenue, or investment income, such as dividends and interest. The amendments narrow the definition of outputs and align it with how outputs are described in
Topic 606 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
periods within those periods. Early adoption is permitted. The standard will be effective for us in the fiscal year beginning August 1, 2018. We are currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements.
Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other than Inventory
In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-16, “ Income Taxes (Topic 740) ”. The standard requires the recognition of the income tax consequences
of an intra-entity transfer of an asset, other than inventory, when the transfer occurs. Two common examples of assets included in the scope of this amendment are
intellectual property and property, plant, and equipment. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including
interim reporting periods within those annual reporting periods. Early adoption is permitted. The standard will be effective for us in the fiscal year beginning
August 1, 2018. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements.
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “ Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230).” The amendments provide guidance on the eight specific cash
flow statement presentation and classification issues as follows: (1) debt prepayment or debt extinguishment costs; (2) settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments
or other debt instruments with coupon interest rates that are insignificant in relation to the effective interest rate of the borrowing; (3) contingent consideration
payments made after a business combination; (4) proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims; (5) proceeds from the settlement of corporate-owned life
insurance policies, including bank-owned life insurance policies; (6) distributions received from equity method investees; (7) beneficial interests in securitization
transactions; and (8) separately identifiable cash flows and application of the predominance principle. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The standard will be effective for us in the first quarter of our fiscal
year ending July 31, 2019. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements.
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Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, “ Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326) ” The amendment modifies the measurement of
expected credit losses of certain financial instruments. Credit losses relating to available-for-sale debt securities should be recorded through an allowance for credit
losses. Available-for-sale accounting recognizes that value may be realized either through collection of contractual cash flows or through sale of the security.
Therefore, the amendments limit the amount of the allowance for credit losses to the amount by which fair value is below amortized cost because the classification
as available for sale is premised on an investment strategy that recognizes that the investment could be sold at fair value, if cash collection would result in the
realization of an amount less than fair value. The allowance for credit losses for purchased available-for-sale securities with a more-than-insignificant amount of
credit deterioration since origination is determined in a similar manner to other available-for-sale debt securities; however, the initial allowance for credit losses is
added to the purchase price rather than reported as a credit loss expense. Only subsequent changes in the allowance for credit losses are recorded in credit loss
expense. Interest income should be recognized based on the effective interest rate, excluding the discount embedded in the purchase price that is attributable to the
acquirer’s assessment of credit losses at acquisition. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. The standard will be effective for us in the fiscal year beginning after August 01, 2020. We are currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of this update on our consolidated financial statements.
Leases
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, “ Leases (Topic 842) ”. The standard requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for most
leases on the balance sheet. For income statement purposes, the standard requires leases to be classified as either operating or finance. The standard is effective for
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The standard will be effective for us in the first quarter of our fiscal
year ending July 31, 2020. Adoption requires application of the new guidance for all periods presented. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
this standard on our consolidated financial statements.
Revenue from contracts with customers
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) ”. This update affects any entity that either enters
into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. This update will supersede existing
revenue recognition requirements and most industry-specific guidance. This update also supersedes some cost guidance, including revenue recognition guidance for
construction-type and production-type contracts. The update’s core principle is that a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In doing so,
companies will need to use more judgment and make more estimates than under today’s guidance. These may include identifying performance obligations in the
contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance
obligation. This update should be applied either on a retrospective or modified retrospective basis. This update was originally effective for us in the first quarter of
our fiscal year ending July 31, 2018. Early adoption was not permitted. In August 2015, the FASB approved a one year delay of the effective date of the new
revenue standard for public entities. Therefore, this update would be effective for us in the first quarter of our fiscal year ending July 31, 2019. The standard
permits entities to early adopt, but only as of the original effective date (i.e. one year earlier). We are expected to adopt the new standard in the first quarter of our
fiscal year 2019 effective August 01, 2018. We are still in the early stage of assessing the adoption method and analyzing the impact of the adoption of this update
on our consolidated financial statements. We established a project plan and an implementation team. Preliminary scoping and testing have been completed, with
detail contract review underway. We are unable to quantify the impact at this time. The implementation team continues to apprise both management and the Audit
Committee of project status on a recurring basis.
3. Accounts receivable, net
Our accounts receivable arise primarily from products sold and services provided in North America, Europe and Asia. The balance in accounts receivable
represents the amount due from our domestic and foreign original equipment manufacturers, or OEM, customers, distributors and end users. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and continuously monitor collections and payments from our customers and maintain a provision for
estimated credit losses based upon specific customer collection issues that have been identified. We accrue reserves against trade receivables for estimated losses
that may result from a customer’s inability to pay. Amounts determined to be uncollectible are charged or written off against the reserve. To date, our historical bad
debts charged against the reserve have been minimal.
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Our top ten customers combined accounted for approximately 53% and 64% of our total net revenue for each of the three months ended October 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Set forth in the table below are customers that individually accounted for 10% or more of our net revenue.
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017

2016

Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V., or Philips
Siemens AG
L-3 Communications Corporation, or L-3

12%
12%
*

13%
13%
10%

Note (*): Total net revenue was less than 10% in this period.
The following table summarizes our customers with net accounts receivable balances greater than or equal to 10% of our total net accounts receivable
balance:
As of
October 31,
2017

As of
July 31,
2017

Philips
Smiths Detection
GE

15%
10%
*

14%
*
11%

Note (*): Total net accounts receivable balance was less than 10% in this period.
4. Inventory
The components of inventory, net of allowance for obsolete, unmarketable or slow-moving inventories, are summarized as follows:
As of
October 31,
2017

(in millions)

Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Total inventory

$

As of
July 31,
2017

60.1
43.8
27.4
131.3

$

$

62.8
41.8
26.0
130.6

$

5. Intangible assets and goodwill
Intangible assets
Intangible assets include the value assigned to intellectual property and other technology, patents, customer contracts and relationships, and trade names.
The estimated useful lives for all of these intangible assets, excluding a trade name determined to have an indefinite life, range between 1 to 14 years. Indefinitelived intangible assets consist of trade names acquired in business combinations. The carrying values of our indefinite-lived intangible assets were $7.6 million at
both the three months ended October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017.
Finite-lived intangible assets are summarized as follows:
As of October 31, 2017

(in millions)

Developed technologies
Customer relationships
Trade names
Total finite-lived intangible assets

Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period

10 years $
13 years
3 years
$

Cost

17.7
43.7
0.9
62.3

Accumulated
Amortization/
Write-Offs

$

$

10

14.8
29.6
0.9
45.3

As of July 31, 2017

Net

$

$

2.9
14.1
17.0

Cost

$

$

17.7
43.7
0.9
62.3

Accumulated
Amortization

$

$

14.4
28.7
0.9
44.0

Net

$

$

3.3
15.0
18.3

Amortization expense related to acquired intangible assets was $1.3 million and $2.0 million for each of the three months ended Octobe r 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively.
Goodwill
We had goodwill balances of $2.3 million at both October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017. We review periodically or more frequently if indicators are present or
changes in circumstances suggest that it is more likely than not that impairment may exist and we perform a formal goodwill impairment test in the second quarter
of each fiscal year.
The goodwill balance by reportable segments and reporting unit at both the three months ended October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017 are as follows:
Medical Imaging
(in millions)

Balance as of July 31, 2017
Balance as of October 31, 2017

Ultrasound

(Medical Imaging
Reporting Unit)

$
$

1.8
1.8

(Ultrasound
Reporting Unit)

Security and Detection
(Security and
Detection
Reporting Unit)

(Oncura
Reporting Unit)

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

Total
Goodwill

0.5
0.5

$
$

2.3
2.3

The following is a rollforward of accumulated goodwill impairment losses by reportable segment and reporting unit:
Medical Imaging
(Medical Imaging
Reporting Unit)

(in millions)

Accumulated impairment losses as
of July 31, 2017
Accumulated impairment losses
as of October 31, 2017

Ultrasound

$
$

(Ultrasound
Reporting Unit)

-

(Oncura
Reporting Unit)

Security and Detection
(Security and
Detection
Reporting Unit)

Total

$

(55.2) $

(16.4) $

-

$

(71.6)

$

(55.2) $

(16.4) $

-

$

(71.6)

6. Fair value measurements
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or the most
advantageous market for the asset transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. We use a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first
two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value:
•

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•

Level 2 – Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted
prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full
term of the assets or liabilities.

•

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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The following tables provide the assets and liabilities carried at fair value and measured on a recurring basis at October 31, 2017 an d July 31, 2017:

Adjusted
Cost

(in millions)

Cash
Level 1:
Money market funds
Subtotal
Level 2:
U.S. agency securities
Non-U.S. government securities
Commercial paper
Corporate securities
Asset-backed securities
Subtotal
Total

Level 2:
U.S. Treasury securities
U.S. agency securities
Non-U.S. government securities
Commercial paper
Corporate securities
Asset-backed securities
Subtotal
Total

Marketable
Securities

$

43.4

$

-

$

-

$

43.4

$

43.4

$

-

$

32.4
75.8

$

-

$

-

$

32.4
75.8

$

32.4
75.8

$

-

4.0
10.5
27.7
40.4
24.5
107.1

$

182.9

$

$

$

4.0
10.5
27.7
40.4
24.5
107.1

$

182.9

$

$

-

$

- $
(0.03)
(0.02)
(0.05) $

$

-

$

(0.05) $

$

$

21.0
21.0

$

4.0
10.5
6.7
40.4
24.5
86.1

$

96.8

$

86.1

Fair Value Measurement as of July 31, 2017
Cash and
Unrealized
Unrealized
Fair
Cash
Gains
Losses
Value
Equivalents

Adjusted
Cost

(in millions)

Cash
Level 1:
Money market funds
Subtotal

Fair Value Measurement as of October 31, 2017
Cash and
Unrealized
Unrealized
Fair
Cash
Gains
Losses
Value
Equivalents

Marketable
Securities

$

46.7

$

-

$

-

$

46.7

$

46.7

$

-

$

38.4
85.1

$

-

$

-

$

38.4
85.1

$

38.4
85.1

$

-

10.0
7.0
3.9
30.1
28.0
10.2
89.2

$

174.3

$

$

$

10.0
7.0
3.9
30.1
28.0
10.2
89.2

$

$

-

$

- $
(0.01)
(0.01) $

$

174.3

$

-

$

(0.01) $

Plan assets for deferred compensation

$

$

10.0
7.0
27.2
44.2

$

3.9
2.9
28.0
10.2
45.0

$

129.3

$

45.0

As of
October 31,
2017

(in millions)

Level 1:
Plan assets for deferred compensation
Total

As of
July 31,
2017

4.8
4.8

$

4.7
4.7

$

Assets held in the deferred compensation plan will be used to pay benefits under our non-qualified deferred compensation plan. The investments primarily
consist of mutual funds that are publicly traded on stock exchanges. Accordingly, the fair value of these assets is categorized as Level 1 within the fair value
hierarchy.
Foreign currency forward contracts

As of
October 31,
2017

(in millions)

Level 2:
Foreign currency forward contracts asset
Total

$
12

As of
July 31,
2017

0.1
0.1

$

0.6
0.6

The fair value of the liabilities arising from our foreign currency forward contracts is determined by valuation models based on market observable inputs,
including forward and spot prices for currencies. Accordingly, the fair value of these liabilities is categorized as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.
7. Derivative instruments
Certain of our foreign operations have revenue and expenses transacted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. In order to mitigate foreign currency
exchange risk, we use forward contracts to lock in exchange rates associated with a portion of our forecasted international expenses.
As of October 31, 2017, we have forward contracts outstanding with notional amounts totaling $11.3 million. These contracts are designated as cash flow
hedges, and the unrealized gain of $0.1 million, net of tax, on these contracts are reported in Accumulated other comprehensive income as of October 31, 2017.
Assets and liability derivatives designated as hedging instruments are presented in other current assets and other current liabilities, respectively, on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. At October 31, 2017 we had a derivative asset of $0.1 million included in other current assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.
As of July 31, 2017, we had forward contracts outstanding with notional amounts totaling $10.9 million. These contracts are designated as cash flow hedges,
and the unrealized gain of $0.5 million, net of tax, on these contracts are reported in Accumulated other comprehensive income as of July 31, 2017. At July 31,
2017 we had a derivative asset of $0.6 million included in other current assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Realized gains and (losses) on the cash flow hedges are recognized in income in the period when the payment of expenses is recognized. During the three
months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016, we recorded approximately $0.2 million of realized gain and ($0.1) million of realized loss, respectively, included in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations.
8. Common stock repurchases
On May 26, 2016, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $15.0 million of our common stock. Purchases under this repurchase program
will be made from time to time depending on market conditions and other factors. The repurchase program has no expiration date. The Board's authorization does
not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock, and the programs may be suspended or discontinued at any time at the Company's
discretion.
During the three months ended October 31, 2017, we repurchased and retired 13,489 shares of common stock under this repurchase program for $1.0
million at an average purchase price of $70.52 per share. The cumulative shares that were repurchased and retired under the program were 61,197 shares of
common stock for $4.4 million at an average purchase price of $71.10 per share.
9. Accumulated other comprehensive income
Components of comprehensive (loss) income include net income and certain transactions that have generally been reported in the Consolidated Statements
of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. Other comprehensive (loss) income consists of reported foreign currency translation gains and losses (net of taxes), actuarial
gains and losses on pension plan assets (net of taxes), changes in the unrealized value on foreign currency forward contracts (net of taxes), and changes in the
unrealized value on available-for-sale securities (net of taxes). Deferred taxes are not provided on cumulative translation adjustments where we expect earnings of a
foreign subsidiary to be indefinitely reinvested. The income tax effect of currency translation adjustments related to foreign subsidiaries that are not considered
indefinitely reinvested is recorded as a component of deferred taxes with an offset to other comprehensive (loss) income.
The following table summarizes components of Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income for the three months ended October 31, 2017:

(in millions)

Balance as of July 31, 2017
Pre-tax change before reclassification to
earnings
Amount reclassified to earnings
Income tax benefit (provision)
Balance as of October 31, 2017

Unrealized
Losses
on
Available
For Sale
Securities

$

(0.01) $

$

(0.1)
(0.1) $
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Unrealized
Gain
on Foreign
Currency
Forward
Contracts

0.5

Unrealized
Losses on
Pension Plan

Currency
Translation
Adjustment

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

$

(3.5) $

(2.1) $

(5.1)

(0.5)
0.1
0.1 $

0.1
(0.1)
(3.5) $

(0.2)
(2.3) $

(0.5)
(0.2)
(5.8)

The ineffective portion of the unrealized losses on foreign currency forward contracts and unrealized gains or losses on currency translation adjustment are
included in other expense, net on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
10. Share-based compensation
The following table presents share-based compensation expense included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions)

2017

Cost of product sales
Cost of engineering sales
Research and product development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Total share-based compensation expense before tax
Income tax effect
Share-based compensation expense included in net income

$

$

2016

0.1
0.4
0.2
1.3
2.0
(0.1)
1.9

$

$

0.1
0.3
0.4
0.8
1.6
(0.5)
1.1

In the three months ended October 31, 2017, we adopted ASU 2016-09, “ Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, ” which amends
ASC 718, “ Stock Based Compensation .” We elected to account for forfeitures as they occur and therefore, share-based compensation expense for the three months
ended October 31, 2017 has been calculated based on actual forfeitures, rather than our previous approach which was net of estimated forfeitures. The adoption of
ASU 2016-09 resulted in a cumulative adjustment of a $0.8 million increase to Retained earnings as of August 1, 2017 on a modified retrospective basis. Sharebased compensation expense for the three months ended October 31, 2016 was recorded net of estimated forfeitures, which were based on historical forfeitures and
adjusted to reflect changes in facts and circumstances, if any. Please refer to "Note 2. Recent accounting pronouncements in the notes to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for detailed adoption information.
Stock options
We estimate the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Key input assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options
include the exercise price of the award, the expected option term, the expected volatility of our stock over the option’s expected term, the risk-free interest rate over
the option’s expected term, and our expected annual dividend yield. Estimates of fair value are not intended to predict actual future events or the value ultimately
realized by persons who receive equity awards.
No stock options were granted during three months ended October 31, 2017 and October 31, 2016, respectively.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016 was $0.01 million and $0.7 million, respectively.
Restricted stock and restricted stock units
We estimate the fair value of time based restricted stock units, or RSU’s, that vest based on service conditions using the quoted closing price of our common
stock on the date of grant. Share-based compensation expense is amortized over each award’s vesting period on a straight-line basis for all awards with service and
performance conditions that vest at the end of the performance cycle, while the accelerated method applies to other awards with both service and performance
conditions.
For our non-GAAP earnings per share, or EPS, awards, the compensation cost is amortized over the performance period on a straight-line basis, net of
forfeitures, because such awards vest only at the end of the performance period. The compensation cost is based on the number of shares that are deemed probable
of vesting at the end of the three-year performance cycle. This probability assessment is done each quarter and changes in estimates can result in significant
expense fluctuations due to the cumulative catch-up adjustment. We estimate the fair value of the non-GAAP EPS awards using the quoted closing price of our
common stock on the date of grant.
For our total shareholder return, or TSR, awards, the compensation cost is amortized over the performance period on a straight-line basis net of forfeitures,
because the awards vest only at the end of the measurement period and the probability of actual shares expected to be earned is considered in the grant date
valuation. As a result, the expense is not adjusted to reflect the actual shares earned. We estimate the fair value of the TSR awards using the Monte-Carlo
simulation model.
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We granted 22,080 and 28,148 TSR awards and 21,896 and 62,032 non-GAAP EPS awards during the three months ended October 31, 2017 and October
31, 2016, respectively. The fair value of our TSR performance-based awards at the date of grant was estimated using the Monte-Carlo simulation model with the
following assumpti ons:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017

Stock price (1)
Expected volatility (2)
Risk-free interest rate (3)
Expected annual dividend yield (4)
Weighted average grant date fair value of time-based
restricted stock awards
Weighted average grant date fair value of performance
based restricted stock awards
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

2016

$

77.15
26.88%
1.48%
0.00%

$

90.23
27.00%
0.85%
0.00%

$

77.14

$

89.39

$

77.15

$

87.05

The stock price is the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant.
The expected volatility for each grant is determined based on the historical volatility for the peer group companies and our common stock over a period
equal to the remaining term of the performance period from the date of grant for all awards.
The risk-free interest rate is determined based on the yield of zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities for a period that is commensurate with the performance
period.
Dividends are considered reinvested when calculating TSR. The dividend yield is therefore considered to be 0%.
The total fair value of RSUs that vested during the three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016 was $3.1 million and $2.6 million, respectively.

As of October 31, 2017, the unrecognized compensation cost, related to unvested stock options and restricted stock was $13.3 million. This cost will be
recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization period of 1.8 years and assumes target performance for the non-GAAP EPS awards.
11. Restructuring charges
Fiscal Year 2017 Restructuring Plan
On March 6, 2017, the Company announced the 2017 Restructuring Plan, which primarily focused on the restructuring of the Ultrasound business, designed
to improve profitability and provide consistent long term growth. As part of the 2017 Restructuring Plan, the Company consolidated the activities conducted in
Vancouver, British Columbia with the existing operations in Copenhagen, Denmark and Peabody, Massachusetts and the Company substantially exited the
Vancouver facility at the end fiscal 2017. The Company re-sized its U.S. sales, global marketing as well as general and administration organizations in-line with its
objectives within primarily its Ultrasound business, but also its Medical Imaging and Security and Detection businesses. We incurred pre-tax charges of $0.5
million during the three months ended October 31, 2017. These costs consisted of facility exit costs and adjustments to the severance and personnel related costs,
which are recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations under restructuring. We expect that the 2017 Restructuring Plan will be substantially completed
during fiscal year 2018.
Current Period Activity
The following table summarizes accrued restructuring activities for the three months ended October 31, 2017:
Employee
Severance
and
Benefits (A)

(in millions)

Balance at July 31, 2017
Restructuring charge
Adjustments
Cash payments
Non-cash adjustments
Balance at October 31, 2017
(A)

$

$

Restructuring charges in fiscal year 2018 relate to the Fiscal Year 2017 Restructuring Plan.
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2.7 $
0.4
(0.2)
(1.8)
1.1 $

Facility
Exit
Costs (A)

Total

0.1 $
0.3
(0.1)
0.3 $

2.8
0.7
(0.2)
(1.8)
(0.1)
1.4

The following table summarizes accrued restructuring activities for the three months ended October 31, 2016:
Employee
Severance
and
Benefits (A)

(in millions)

Balance at July 31, 2016
Adjustments
Cash payments
Balance at October 31, 2016
(A)

$

Total

5.2
0.03
(2.7)
2.5

$

$

5.2
0.03
(2.7)
2.5

$

Activity during the period relates to our fiscal year 2016 restructuring plan, which was completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2017.
Restructuring and related charges, including actions associated with acquisitions, by segment are as follows:
For Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions)

Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total restructuring and related charges

$

0.1
0.4
0.5

$

$

0.02
0.01
0.03

$

Accrued restructuring charges are classified on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in the Current Liabilities section.
12. Net income per common share
Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share
is computed using the sum of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period and, if dilutive, the weighted average number of
potential shares of common stock, including unvested restricted stock and the assumed exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method.
Basic and diluted net income per share are calculated as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions, except per share data and share data in thousands)

(A)

2017

Net income
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding-basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding-diluted

$

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Anti-dilutive shares related to outstanding stock options
and unvested restricted stock (A)

$
$

2016

5.7

$

2.5

12,473

12,419

126

197

12,599
0.45
0.45
26

12,616
$
$

0.20
0.20
1

These shares related to outstanding stock options and unvested restricted stock were not included in our calculations of diluted earnings per share, as the
effect of including them would be anti-dilutive.
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13. Income taxes
The following table presents the provision for income taxes and our effective tax rate for the three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions except percentages)

2017

Provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

$

2016

2.5
30%

$

1.0
28%

The effective income tax rate on operations is based upon the estimated income for the year, the composition of the income in different countries, and
adjustments, if any, in the applicable quarterly periods for the potential tax consequences, benefits, resolutions of tax audits or other tax contingencies.
Our effective tax rate for the three months ended October 31, 2017 is lower than the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to income generated outside the
United States in countries with lower tax rates and tax credits in the United States and Canada, offset by certain discrete tax expense. The tax provision for the three
months ended October 31, 2017 includes discrete tax expense totaling $0.5 million.
Our effective tax rate for the three months ended October 31, 2016 lower than the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to income generated outside the
United States in countries with lower tax rates, tax credits in the United States and Canada, and the manufacturing deduction in the United States. The tax provision
for the three months ended October 31, 2016 includes discrete tax benefits totaling less than $0.1 million.
We are subject to U.S. Federal income tax as well as the income tax of multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. As of October 31, 2017, we have concluded
all U.S. Federal income tax matters through the year ended July 31, 2013.
We accrue interest and, if applicable, penalties for any uncertain tax positions. This interest and penalty expense is treated as a component of income tax
expense. At October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, we had approximately $0.1 million and $0.1 million accrued for interest and penalties on unrecognized tax
benefits, respectively.
At October 31, 2017, we had $4.9 million of unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positions and $0.1 million of related accrued interest and penalties.
We are unable to reasonably estimate the amount and period in which these liabilities might be paid.
We do not provide for U.S. Federal income taxes on undistributed earnings of consolidated foreign subsidiaries, as such earnings are intended to be
indefinitely reinvested in those operations. Determination of the potential deferred income tax liability on these undistributed earnings is not practicable because
such liability, if any, is dependent on circumstances that exist if and when remittance occurs. The circumstances that would affect the calculations would be the
source location and amount of the distribution, the underlying tax rate already paid on the earnings, foreign withholding taxes and the opportunity to use foreign tax
credits.
14. Segment information
Our business is strategically aligned into three segments: Medical Imaging, Ultrasound, and Security and Detection. Our business segments are described as
follows:
•

Medical Imaging primarily includes systems and subsystems for CT and MRI medical imaging equipment as well as state-of-the-art, selenium-based
detectors for screening of breast cancer and other diagnostic applications in mammography.

•

Ultrasound includes ultrasound systems and transducers primarily in the urology, surgery, and Anesthesia markets.

•

Security and Detection includes advanced threat detecting CT systems utilizing our expertise in advanced imaging technology, primarily used in the
checked baggage screening at airports worldwide.
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The tables below present information about our reportable segments:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions)

2017

Product revenue:
Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total product revenue

$

$

Engineering revenue:
Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total engineering revenue

52.0
37.4
16.4
105.8

$

1.1
1.1

$

53.1
37.4
16.4
106.9

$

4.8
1.3
1.8
7.9
0.2
8.1

$

$

$

Net revenue:
Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total net revenue

$

$

Income (loss) from operations:
Medical Imaging (A)
Ultrasound (B)
Security and Detection
Total income from operations
Total other income (loss), net
Income before income taxes

$

$

Identifiable total assets by segment:
Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total reportable segment assets
Corporate assets (C)
Total identifiable assets

$

$

159.6
132.7
39.7
332.0
203.0
535.0

66.5
35.6
18.1
120.2

$

0.7
0.2
0.9

$

67.2
35.8
18.1
121.1

$

6.7
(5.8)
3.0
3.9
(0.4)
3.5

$

As of
October 31,
2017

(in millions)

(A)
(B)
(C)

2016

As of
July 31,
2017

$

$

169.1
133.6
36.0
338.7
197.0
535.7

Includes restructuring charges of $0.1 million and $0.02 million for the three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Includes restructuring charges of $0.4 million and $0.01 million for the three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Includes cash and cash equivalents of $132.6 million and $135.2 million as of October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, respectively.

15. Guarantees, commitments and contingencies
Guarantees and Indemnification Obligations
Our standard OEM and supply agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business typically contain an indemnification provision pursuant to which
we indemnify, hold harmless, and agree to reimburse the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party in connection with any U.S.
patent or any copyright or other intellectual property infringement claim by any third party with respect to our products. Such provisions generally survive
termination or expiration of the agreements. The potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under these indemnification provisions is, in
some instances, unlimited. Our costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements have been insignificant to date. As a result, we
believe that our estimated exposure on these agreements is currently minimal. Accordingly, we have no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of October 31,
2017.
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Generally, we warrant that our products will perform in all m aterial respects in accordance with our standard published specifications in effect at the time of
delivery of the products to the customer for a period ranging from 12 to 60 months from the date of delivery. We provide for the estimated cost of product an d
service warranties based on specific warranty claims, claim history, and engineering estimates, where applicable.
The following table presents our product warranty liability as of October 31, 2017:
As of
October 31,
2017

(in millions)

Beginning balance
Provision
Warranty activity during the period
Ending balance

$

$

5.3
0.9
(1.3)
4.9

At October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, we had deferred revenue for extended product warranty contracts of $0.4 million and $0.4 million, respectively.
Revolving Credit Agreements
On November 23, 2015, we entered into a five-year revolving credit agreement, or Credit Agreement, with the financial institutions identified therein as
lenders, which included JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., TD Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., HSBC Bank, N.A., and People’s United Bank, N.A. Effective
August 25, 2017, HSBC exited the Credit Agreement, and was replaced with Citibank. The Credit Agreement provides $100.0 million in available credit and
expires on November 23, 2020, when all outstanding borrowings must be paid in full. The credit facility does not require amortization of principal and may be
reduced before maturity in whole or in part at our option without penalty. Upon entry into the Credit Agreement, we terminated without penalty a $100.0 million
five-year, revolving credit agreement entered into on October 11, 2011 and previously paid in full in accordance with its terms. Borrowings under the Credit
Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including permitted acquisitions. The amount of available credit can be increased under specified
circumstances up to $200.0 million in aggregate. We are the sole borrower under the Credit Agreement. The obligations under the credit facility are guaranteed as
required to be by our material domestic subsidiaries as designated by us from time to time or as required under the Credit Agreement. There are no pledges of the
capital stock or assets of our international subsidiaries.
Interest rates on borrowings outstanding under the credit facility range from 1.25% to 1.75% above the LIBOR rate, or, at our option range from 0.00% to
1.00% above a defined base rate, the amount in each case varying based upon our leverage ratio. A quarterly commitment fee ranging from 0.20% to 0.35% per
annum is applicable on the undrawn portion of the credit facility, based upon our leverage ratio.
The Credit Agreement limits our and our subsidiaries’ ability to, among other things: incur additional indebtedness; incur liens or guarantee obligations; pay
dividends or make other distributions; make investments; dispose of assets; and engage in transactions with affiliates except on an arms-length basis. In addition,
the Credit Agreement requires us to maintain the following financial ratios:
•

A leverage ratio, defined as consolidated funded indebtedness to consolidated trailing four quarters earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization, or EBITDA, with the adjustments as stipulated in the Credit Agreement, of no greater than 2.75:1.00 (with a temporary step-up in the
event of certain acquisitions); and

•

An interest coverage ratio, defined as the ratio of consolidated trailing four quarters adjusted EBITDA to consolidated interest charges of no less than
3.00:1.00 at any time.

As of October 31, 2017, our leverage ratio was 0.004:1.00 and our interest coverage ratio was not applicable as we had no attributable interest expense. As
of October 31, 2017, we were in full compliance with all financial and operating covenants contained in the Credit Agreement.
Any failure to comply with the financial or operating covenants of the credit facility would prevent us from being able to borrow and would also constitute a
default, permitting the lenders to, among other things, accelerate repayment of outstanding borrowings, including all accrued interest and fees, and to terminate the
credit facility. A change in control, as defined in the Credit Agreement, would also constitute an event of default, permitting the lenders to accelerate repayment
and terminate the Credit Agreement.
In connection with entering into the Credit Agreement, we incurred approximately $0.5 million of transaction costs, which are being amortized over the
five-year life of the credit facility.
19

As of October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, we had approximately $1.2 million in other revolving credit facilities with banks available for direct borrowings.
We did not have any borrowing outstanding under any of our credit facilities at October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, respectively.
Legal Claims
We are subject to litigation, claims, investigations and audits arising from time to time in the ordinary course of our business. Although legal proceedings
are inherently unpredictable, we believe that we have valid defenses with respect to those matters currently pending against us and intend to defend ourselves
vigorously. The outcome of these matters, individually and in the aggregate, is not expected to have a material impact on our cash flows, results of operations, or
financial position. We record losses when estimable and probable in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
On July 31, 2017, twenty-four former interest-holders of Oncura Partners Diagnostics, LLC (“Plaintiffs”) filed suit in the District Court of Travis County,
Texas against Analogic Corporation (“Analogic”) and Oncura Partners Diagnostics, LLC (“Oncura”) (together “Defendants”) alleging claims arising out of
Analogic’s acquisition of Oncura from Plaintiffs in 2016. Plaintiffs asserted claims for breach of contract, anticipatory repudiation, fraud, negligent
misrepresentation, breach of implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment, and declaratory judgement; they seek unspecified damages in excess of
$1.0 million. On August 25, 2017, Defendants timely removed the action to federal court in Texas and the case was subsequently transferred to the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York. On September 29, 2017, Plaintiffs filed an Amended Complaint, setting forth the same claims and seeking the
same damages set forth in their original pleading. We believe that the claims asserted by Plaintiffs are without merit and intend to defend the matter vigorously. We
cannot reasonably estimate any loss or range of such loss that may arise from this matter at this time.
16. Subsequent events
We declared a dividend of $0.10 per share of common stock on December 1, 2017, which will be paid on December 29, 2017 to stockholders of record on
December 15, 2017.
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Item 2.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion provides an analysis of our financial condition and results of operations and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. The discussion contains statements, which, to the extent that they are not a
recitation of historical facts, constitute “forward-looking statements” pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
All statements, other than statements of historical fact, including, statements about product development, market and industry trends, strategic initiatives, regulatory
approvals, sales, profits, expenses, price trends, research and development expenses and trends, and capital expenditures, we make in this document or in any
document incorporated by reference are forward-looking. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “seeks,”
“estimates,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward looking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties, and other factors, which may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to differ materially from the projected results. See Part I,
Item 1A. Risk Factors of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2017 as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC on
September 26, 2017 for a discussion of the primary risks and uncertainties known to us.
In addition, any forward-looking statements represent management’s views only as of the date this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q was filed with the SEC
and should not be relied upon as representing management’s views as of any subsequent date. While management may elect to update forward-looking statements
at some point in the future, it specifically disclaims any obligation to do so, even if its views change, except as required by law.
We report our financial condition and results of operations on a fiscal year basis ending July 31. The three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016
represent the first quarters of fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Our Management’s Discussion and Analysis is presented in six sections as follows:
•

Executive Summary

•

Results of Operations

•

Liquidity and Capital Resources

•

Commitments, Contractual Obligations, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

•

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

•

Critical Accounting Policies

Executive Summary
Introduction
Analogic Corporation designs, manufactures, and commercializes innovative real-time guidance, diagnostic imaging and threat detection technologies to
advance the practice of medicine and save lives. We design, manufacture and sell advanced medical imaging, ultrasound and security systems and subsystems to
original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and end users primarily for the healthcare and airport security markets.
Our business is strategically aligned into three segments: Medical Imaging, Ultrasound, and Security and Detection. Our business segments are described as
follows:
•

Medical Imaging primarily includes systems and subsystems for Computed Tomography, subsystems for MRI equipment as well as state-of-the-art,
selenium-based detectors for screening of breast cancer and other diagnostic applications in mammography.

•

Ultrasound includes ultrasound systems and transducers primarily used in the urology, surgery, and Anesthesia markets.

•

Security and Detection includes advanced threat detection CT systems utilizing our expertise in advanced medical imaging technology, primarily
used in the checked baggage screening at airports worldwide.
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Financial Results
The following table summarizes our financial results:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions, except per share amounts and percentages)

Total net revenues
Gross profit
Gross margin
Income from operations
Operating margin
Net income
Diluted net income per share

$
$

106.9
47.8
44.7%
7.9
7.4%
5.7
0.45

$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

Percentage
Change

121.1
51.6
42.6%
3.9
3.2%
2.5
0.20

-12%
-7%
103%
128%
125%

For a discussion of seasonal aspects of our business please refer to Part 1, Item 1. Business of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2017, as filed
with the SEC on September 26, 2017.
Results of Operations
Three months ended October 31, 2017 compared to the three months ended October 31, 2016
Net revenue
Product revenue
Product revenue by segment is summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions except percentages)

Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total product revenue

$

$

52.0
37.4
16.4
105.8

$

$

Percentage
Change

66.5
35.6
18.1
120.2

-22%
5%
-9%
-12%

Medical Imaging
During the three months ended October 31, 2017, our Medical Imaging revenue decreased by 22%, primarily due to reductions in CT, MRI and digital
Mammography, partially offset by increases in Motion due to additions of new customers.
Ultrasound
During the three months ended October 31, 2017, our Ultrasound revenue increased by 5%, primarily due to strong growth in direct sales of Ultrasound
systems in North America and Europe.
Security and Detection
During the three months ended October 31, 2017 , our Security and Detection revenue decreased by 9%, primarily driven by decreased volume in medium
speed airport screening systems, partially offset by increases in high speed systems and increases in Rapid DNA system sales.
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Engineering r evenue
Engineering revenue by segment is summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions except percentages)

Medical Imaging
Ultrasound
Security and Detection
Total engineering revenue

$

1.1
1.1

$

$

$

Percentage
Change

0.7
0.2
0.9

57%
-100%
0%
22%

The change in engineering revenue for the three months ended October 31, 2017 was primarily due to timing of work done on customer-funded
engineering projects in the Medical Imaging segment.
Customer-funded engineering projects in each of the segments can vary substantially from period to period in terms of resource requirements, type, size,
length of project, and profitability.
Gross margin
Product gross margin
Product gross margin is summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions except percentages)

Product gross profit
Product gross margin

$

47.8
$
45.2%

Percentage
Change

51.5
42.8%

-7%

Product gross margin increased by 2.4 points during the three months ended October 31, 2017, primarily due to product/segment mix as well as ongoing
cost control efforts.
Engineering gross margin
Engineering gross margin is summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions except percentages)

Engineering gross profit
Engineering gross margin

$

$
-1.2%

Percentage
Change

0.1
17.2%

-100%

The change in the engineering gross margin during the three months ended October 31, 2017 was due to the mix of engineering projects.
Operating expenses
Operating expenses are summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions except percentages)

Research and product development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Restructuring
Total operating expenses

$

$

15.0
12.4
11.9
0.5
39.8

$

$

Percentage
Change

15.9
18.2
13.6
0.03
47.7

-6%
-32%
-13%
1567%
-17%

Percentage of Net
Revenue
2017
2016

14%
12%
11%
1%
37%

Operating expenses for the three months ended October 31, 2017 decreased by $7.9 million, or 17%, compared to the same period in 2016.
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13%
15%
11%
0%
39%

Research and produc t development expenses decreased by $0.9 million, or 6% during the three months ended October 31, 2017, due to headcount related
savings.
Selling and marketing expenses decreased by $5.8 million, or 32% during the three months ended October 31, 2017, primarily due to headcount reductions,
travel and lower other related costs.
General and administrative expenses decreased by $1.7 million, or 13% during the three months ended October 31, 2017, primarily due to $1.4 million in
CEO transition related costs during the three months ended October 31, 2016, $1.0 million headcount reductions and lower consulting costs, partially offset by an
increase in expenses of $1.1 million, primarily due to strategic transaction and legal expenses in the three months ended October 31, 2017.
Restructuring expenses were $0.5 million during the three months ended October 31, 2017 due to costs incurred associated with the Fiscal Year 2017
Restructuring Plan.
Other income (expense), net
Other income (expense), net is summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions)

2017

Interest income, net
Other, net
Total other income (expense), net

$

2016

0.5
(0.3)
0.2

$

$

(0.4)
(0.4)

$

Other income (expense), net was $0.2 million during the three months ended October 31, 2017 compared to $(0.4) million during the three months ended
October 31, 2016, predominantly due to interest income in connection with our marketable securities during the three months ended October 31, 2017.
Provision for income taxes
The following table presents the provision for income taxes and our effective tax rate for the three months ended October 31, 2017 and 2016:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions except percentages)

2017

Provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

$

2016

2.5
30%

$

1.0
28%

The effective income tax rate on operations is based upon the estimated income for the year, the composition of the income in different countries, and
adjustments, if any, in the applicable quarterly periods for the potential tax consequences, benefits, resolutions of tax audits or other tax contingencies.
Our effective tax rate for the three months ended October 31, 2017 is lower than the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to operating income generated
outside the United States with lower tax rates and tax credits in the United States and Canada, offset by certain discrete tax expense. The tax provision for the three
months ended October 31, 2017 includes discrete tax expense totaling $0.5 million
Our effective tax rate for the three months ended October 31, 2016 was lower than the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to income generated outside the
United States in countries with lower tax rates, tax credits in the United States and Canada, and the manufacturing deduction in the United States. The tax provision
for the three months ended October 31, 2016 includes discrete tax benefits totaling less than $0.1 million.
We are subject to U.S. Federal income tax as well as the income tax of multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. As of October 31, 2017, we have concluded
all U.S. Federal income tax matters through the year ended July 31, 2013.
We accrue interest and, if applicable, penalties for any uncertain tax positions. This interest and penalty expense is treated as a component of income tax
expense. At October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, we had approximately $0.1 million and $0.1 million accrued for interest and penalties on unrecognized tax
benefits, respectively.
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At October 31, 2017, we had $4.9 million of unrecognized tax benefits for uncerta in tax positions and $0.1 million of related accrued interest and penalties.
We are unable to reasonably estimate the amount and period in which these liabilities might be paid.
We do not provide for U.S. Federal income taxes on undistributed earnings of consolidated foreign subsidiaries, as such earnings are intended to be
indefinitely reinvested in those operations. Determination of the potential deferred income tax liability on these undistributed earnings is not practicable because
such liability, if any, is dependent on circumstances that exist if and when remittance occurs. The circumstances that would affect the calculations would be the
source location and amount of the distribution, the underlying tax rate already paid on the earnings, foreign withholding taxes and the opportunity to use foreign tax
credits.
Net income and diluted net income per share
Net income and diluted net income per share are summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
(in millions except percentages)

2017

Net income
% of net revenue
Diluted net income per share from operations

$

2016

5.7
5%
0.45

$

$
$

2.5
2%
0.20

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Key liquidity and capital resource information are summarized as follows:
As of
October 31,
2017

(in millions)

Cash and cash equivalents (A)
Marketable securities
Working capital
(A)

$
$

96.8
86.1
301.7

As of
July 31,
2017

$
$

Percentage
Change

129.3
45.0
303.6

-25%
91%
-1%

Includes approximately $47.8 million and $47.7 million of cash and cash equivalents held outside the U.S. at October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017,
respectively.

As of October 31, 2017, we had cash and cash equivalents of $96.8 million, a $32.5 million decrease from July 31, 2017, as we generated $14.2 million in
cash from operations, $2.9 million proceeds from maturities of marketable securities, $0.5 million proceeds from sales of marketable securities, and $0.5 million
from the issuance of stock. This was offset by $44.7 million of purchases of marketable securities, $2.4 million paid for additions to property and equipment, $1.2
million cash payment to shareholders for dividends, $1.1 million for the shares surrendered for taxes for vested employee restricted stock grants, and $1.0 million
for the repurchase of common stock.
The working capital from July 31, 2017 to October 31, 2017 was essentially flat. A $32.5 million decrease of cash and cash equivalents was offset by an
increase of $31.8 million in short-term marketable securities.
Cash and cash equivalents at October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017 primarily consisted of demand deposits at highly rated banks and financial institutions. We
periodically review our investment portfolio to determine if any investments are impaired due to changes in credit risk or other potential valuation concerns. We
believe that our cash equivalents were appropriately valued at October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017 and we are not aware of any market events that would impact
their valuation. This could change in the future should new developments arise in the credit markets.
Cash flows
Sources and uses of cash flows are summarized as follows:
Three Months Ended
October 31,
2017
2016

(in millions, except percentages)

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

$

$

25

14.2 $
(43.7)
(2.8)
(0.2)
(32.5) $

Percentage
Change

26.5
(3.2)
0.3
(0.3)
23.3

-46%
1266%
-1033%
-33%
-239%

Operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities during the three months ended October 31, 2017 primarily reflects our net income of $5.7 million, $5.8 million
related to depreciation and amortization, as well as collection of accounts receivable, which decreased by $4.5 million.
Net cash provided by operating activities during the three months ended October 31, 2016 primarily reflects our net income of $2.5 million, $5.5 million
related to depreciation and amortization, as well as collection of accounts receivable, which decreased by $20.0 million.
Investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities during the three months ended October 31, 2017 was driven by $44.7 million of purchases of marketable securities,
purchases of property, plant and equipment of $2.4 million, and partially offset by $2.9 million proceeds from maturities of marketable securities and $0.5 million
proceeds from sales of marketable securities.
The net cash used in investing activities during the three months ended October 31, 2016 was driven by purchases of property, plant and equipment of $3.3
million.
Financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities during the three months ended October 31, 2017 primarily reflected $1.2 million of dividends paid to stockholders, $1.1
million used for shares surrendered for taxes paid related to vested employee restricted stock, $1.0 million for repurchase of common stock, partially offset by
proceeds from the issuance of common stock amounting to $0.5 million associated with share-based compensation.
The net cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended October 31, 2016 primarily reflected proceeds from the issuance of common
stock amounting to $2.3 million associated with share-based compensation and CEO transition-related exercise of stock options, partially offset by $1.2 million of
dividends paid to stockholders and $0.8 million used for shares surrendered for taxes paid related to vested employee restricted stock.
We believe that our balances of cash and cash equivalents and cash flows expected to be generated by future operating activities will be sufficient to meet
our cash requirements for at least the next 12 months.
Commitments, Contractual Obligations, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Our contractual obligations at October 31, 2017 related to our operating leases, purchase obligations, pension, and contingent consideration affect our
liquidity and cash flows in future periods.
Operating Leases – Certain of our subsidiaries lease manufacturing and office space under non-cancelable operating leases. These leases contain renewal
options. We lease certain other real property and equipment under operating leases which, in the aggregate, are not significant. At October 31, 2017 and July 31,
2017, total commitments related to our operating leases were $6.2 million and $4.4 million, respectively.
Purchase Obligations – We enter into certain long-term agreements with customers, which obligate us to purchase goods or services. At October 31, 2017
and July 31, 2017, total purchase obligations were $30.3 million and $23.2 million, respectively.
Pension – Our Canadian subsidiary, Analogic Canada Corporation, formerly known as ANRAD Corporation, sponsors a defined benefit retirement plan
called the Analogic Canada Corporation Retirement Plan, or the “Analogic Canada Plan”. The Analogic Canada Plan was frozen to new accruals during fiscal year
2015. The Analogic Canada Plan provides benefits to employees based on a formula recognizing length of service and final average earnings. Please refer to Note
14. Retirement Plans in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending 2017 for details. The benefit obligation at October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017
totaled $4.7 million and $4.8 million, respectively
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Financing Arrangements
On November 23, 2015, we entered into a five-year revolving credit agreement, or Credit Agreement, with the financial institutions identified therein as
lenders, which included JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., TD Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., HSBC Bank, N.A., and People’s United Bank, N.A. Effective
August 25, 2017, HSBC exited the Credit Agreement, and was replaced with Citibank. The Credit Agreement provides $100.0 million in available credit and
expires on November 23, 2020, when all outstanding borrowings must be paid in full. The credit facility does not require amortization of principal and may be
reduced before maturity in whole or in part at our option without penalty. We did not have any borrowings outstanding under this Credit Agreement as of October
31, 2017 . Please refer to Note 15. Guarantees, commitments and contingencies for more information on the Credit Agreement.
As of October 31, 2017, we also have approximately $1.2 million in other revolving credit facilities with banks available for direct borrowings.
Tax Related Obligations
At October 31, 2017, we had $4.9 million of unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positions and $0.1 million of related accrued interest and penalties.
We are unable to reasonably estimate the amount and period in which these liabilities might be paid. Please refer to Note 13. Income taxes to our consolidated
financial statements for additional information regarding matters relating to income taxes, including unrecognized tax benefits.
Legal Claims
We are subject to litigation, claims, investigations and audits arising from time to time in the ordinary course of our business. Although legal proceedings
are inherently unpredictable, we believe that we have valid defenses with respect to those matters currently pending against us and intend to defend ourselves
vigorously. The outcome of these matters, individually and in the aggregate, is not expected to have a material impact on our cash flows, results of operations, or
financial position. We record losses when estimable and probable in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
On July 31, 2017, twenty-four former interest-holders of Oncura Partners Diagnostics, LLC (“Plaintiffs”) filed suit in the District Court of Travis County,
Texas against Analogic Corporation (“Analogic”) and Oncura Partners Diagnostics, LLC (“Oncura”) (together “Defendants”) alleging claims arising out of
Analogic’s acquisition of Oncura from Plaintiffs in 2016. Plaintiffs asserted claims for breach of contract, anticipatory repudiation, fraud, negligent
misrepresentation, breach of implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment, and declaratory judgement; they seek unspecified damages in excess of
$1.0 million. On August 25, 2017, Defendants timely removed the action to federal court in Texas and the case was subsequently transferred to the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York. On September 29, 2017, Plaintiffs filed an Amended Complaint, setting forth the same claims and seeking the
same damages set forth in their original pleading. We believe that the claims asserted by Plaintiffs are without merit and intend to defend the matter vigorously. We
cannot reasonably estimate any loss or range of such loss that may arise from this matter at this time.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined under SEC rules, during the periods presented.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a discussion of new accounting standards please refer to Note 2. Recent accounting pronouncements to our consolidated financial statements included
within this report.
Critical Accounting Policies
The accompanying discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or U.S. GAAP. Our most critical accounting policies
have a significant impact on the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies include estimates and significant judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities.
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Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitat ive Disclosures About Market Risk

Our market risks and the ways we manage them were summarized in Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2017, as filed with the SEC on September 26, 2017. There has been no material changes during the three months ended
October 31, 2017 to our market risks or to our management of such risks.
Item 4.

Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of October 31, 2017. The term “disclosure controls and procedures”, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported, within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions to be made regarding
required disclosure. It should be noted that any system of controls and procedures, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system are met and that management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of
possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of October 31, 2017, our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the three
months ended October 31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Part II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1.

Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of legal matters as of October 31, 2017, please refer to Note 15. Guarantees, commitments and contingencies to our consolidated financial
statements included in this report.
Item 1A.

Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2017, as filed with the SEC on September 26, 2017, which could materially affect our business, financial condition,
and future operating results. The risks described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2017, as filed with the SEC on September 26, 2017, are not the
only risks that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition, and operating results. There have been no material changes to the risk factors set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
fiscal year 2017, as filed with the SEC on September 26, 2017.
Item 2.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The following table contains information about purchases by us of our equity securities during the three months ended October 31, 2017:

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased (1)

Period

8/1/2017-8/31/2017
9/1/2017-9/30/2017
10/1/2017-10/31/2017
Total
(1)

(2 )

11,044
2,445
13,489

Average Price Paid
per Share (1)

$
$
$
$

70.09
72.45
70.52

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or
Programs (1) (2)

11,129
15,878
168
27,175

Approximate Dollar Value
of Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs
(000's)

$
$
$
$

10,826
10,649
10,649
10,649

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2018 we repurchased 13,489 shares of our common stock in open-market transactions for $1.0 million at an average
purchase price of $70.52 per share. These shares were purchased in Q1 FY18 pursuant to a repurchase program authorized by our board of directors that
was announced on May 26, 2016 to repurchase up to $15 million of our common stock. These repurchase programs do not have a fixed expiration date.
Includes 13,686 shares, consisting of 85 shares, 13,433 shares and 168 shares of our common stock surrendered by employees in order to meet tax
withholding obligations in connection with the vesting of restricted stock in August, September and October 2017, respectively.

Item 5.

Other Information

On December7, 2017, the Company entered into severance agreements (each, a “ Severance Agreement ”) with Michael Bourque, Mervat Faltas, and
Brooks West (each, an “ Executive ”). Each Severance Agreement also includes a form of release and reaffirmation agreement (the “ Release Agreement ”) and a
non-competition and non-solicitation agreement attached to the Separation Agreement as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively. The full text of the form of
Severance Agreement, including the exhibits, is attached as Exhibit 10.3 to this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by reference. The following
description of the Severance Agreements is qualified in its entirety by reference to the attached form of Severance Agreement.
The Severance Agreements provide that, if the applicable Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company other than for cause, other than by reason
of the Executive’s death or disability, and other than in connection with a change in control, and subject to Executive’s execution the Release Agreement and such
Release Agreement becoming irrevocable (the “ Severance Conditions ”), the Company will (a) pay Executive’s then applicable annualized base salary for a period
of twelve months f ollowing the date of termination (the “ Severance Period ”), such payments to be made in approximately equal installments according to the
Company’s then-current payroll practices; (b) subsidize Executive’s COBRA premiums to continue Executive’s coverage (including coverage for the Participant’s
eligible dependents, if applicable) during the Severance Period, such that the Executive will be required to pay the contributions required of active employees
during the Severance Period ; (c) pay to the Executive a sum equal to the Executive’s actual incentive award, if any, as calculated according to the annual incentive
plan for the fiscal year in which the Executive’s termination occurs; and (d) as elected by Executive on or before the date Executive executes the R elease
Agreement, provide one of (i) outplacement services provided through a Company-approved plan and provider for a period not to exceed the Severance Period,
such services not to have a cost to the Company in excess of $10,000.00; or (ii) a lump sum payment in the amount of $10,000.00.
If, within twenty four (24) months following a change in control, the Executive’s employment is (i) terminated by the Company without cause and not for
death or disability, or (ii) if Executive resigns his or her employment for good reason, the Company shall,
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subject to the Severance Conditions, pay the Executive (a) the amounts set forth in the preceding paragraph at the times provided therein; and (b) an amount equal
to sixty percent (60%) of the Executive’s most recent annualized base salary, payable on the first payroll date following the date on which the Release Agreement
becomes irrevocable.
If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company for cause, or by reason of the Executive’s death or disability, the Severance Agreement will
terminate without further obligations to the Executive, other than the payment of accrued obligations.
The Severance Agreements supersede any previous agreements between the applicable Executive and the Company relating to severance and postemployment benefits and payments.
Item 6.

Exhibits

10.1 Form of Notice to Executive Officers (at Vice President or higher level) Regarding the Fiscal Year 2018 Annual Incentive Plan
10.2 Form of Director Annual Stock Retainer and Annual Retainer Deferral Election under Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan
10.3 Form of Executive Severance Agreeement dated December 7, 2017
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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The following materials from Analogic Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2017 are formatted in XBRL
(Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of October 31, 2017 and July 31, 2017, (ii) Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the Three Months Ended October 31, 2017 and 2016, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Three Months Ended
October 31, 2017 and 2016, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended October 31, 2017 and 2016 and (v) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNAT URES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
ANALOGIC CORPORATION
Date: December 7, 2017

/s/ Fred B. Parks
Fred B. Parks
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: December 7, 2017

/s/ Michael J. Bourque
Michael J. Bourque
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

Analogic Corporation
Annual Incentive Plan for Fiscal Year 2018
Employee:

Company

Title:

Target Level:

Plan Year:

8/1/2017 – 7/31/2018

Supervisor:

Congratulations! Analogic Corporation (the “Company”) has selected you to participate in its Annual Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) for fiscal year
2018. A summary of the terms of the Plan, as it applies to you, is shown below 1 :
1. Eligibility to Earn an Award
You will be eligible to earn an award under the Plan if: you are an employee of the Company on July 31, 2018, 2 or your employment is terminated
involuntarily on or after January 31, 2018 and you are eligible for Severance Benefits.
2. Performance Factors (see attachment)
Your actual award may be greater or less than the Target Level, depending on the Company’s results, your performance relative to Individual
Objectives for the Plan year. If you are eligible to receive an award, your final award amount will be determined based upon the following
performance factors:
(a)

Analogic Non-GAAP-EBITDA - 70% of your award shall be determined by Analogic’s year-end results for Non-GAAP EBITDA relative to
budget for fiscal year 2018.

(b)

Analogic’s Revenue – 30% of your award shall be determined by Analogic’s year-end results for Revenue relative to budget for fiscal year 2018.

3. Determining Your Award
(a)

Your award will be equal to your Target Level multiplied by your Eligible Base Earnings, adjusted for the actual performance measures relative
to budget attained for 2018. “Eligible Base Earnings” means total base salary payments (including vacation, sick, and holiday pay) made through
Company payroll for the Plan year. Payments made to employees during approved medical leaves of absence are excluded.

(b)

Actual awards will range from 0 to two 2 times the Target Level for the performance factors.

(c)

If you are not eligible for an award for the entire 2018 fiscal year or if your Target Level changes during the Plan year, your award will be
prorated based on the number of months that you were eligible to receive the award.

1 For more information concerning the Plan, please contact the Human Resources Department.
2 Because payment of an award under the Plan is determined in part upon the Company’s performance during the 2018 Fiscal Year, the payment date of any award will be after the completion of fiscal year 2018, as determined in the sole discretion of the Company’s

Compensation Committee.

Exhibit 10.2
DEFERRAL ELECTION FORM
ANALOGIC CORPORATION AMENDED AND RESTATED
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR STOCK PLAN (THE “PLAN”)
I.

Plan Year and Return Information. This deferral election applies only to the Plan Year shown below. We must receive your
completed form by the Return Date or your deferral election will not be effective.
Plan Year
Return Date:
Return To:

II.

CY2018
December 15, 2017
Jackie Lucas at Analogic
e-mail: jlucas@analogic.com

Participant Name and Address
Name:
Address:

III.

Annual Cash Retainer Deferral Election. Please defer my Annual Cash Retainer ($50,000 for CY2018) as shown
below. The deferral percentage must be between 0% and 100%, in multiples of 10 ( e.g. , 10%, 20%, 30%, etc.). The total of
the deferral percentages must equal either 0% or 100%.
Percentage Deferred as Deferred Stock
Units
Percentage Deferred into Cash Account
Total of above:

IV.

0%

Distribution Election. Please distribute the then-current value of my Deferred Stock Units and/or cash account for the current
Plan Year when indicated below. Mark only one/select date as applicable.
☐
☐

VI.

0%
0%

Annual Share Retainer Deferral Election. Please defer the indicated portion of my Annual Share retainer into Deferred
Stock Units as shown below. The deferral percentage must be between 0% and 100%, in multiples of 10 ( e.g. , 10%, 20%,
30%, etc.).
Percentage Deferred as Deferred Stock
Units

V.

0%

Date:

Upon termination of my service to Analogic as a member of the Board of
Directors.
On the date shown (must be at least one year from the date of your election).

Participant Signature and Date. I acknowledge that my deferral election is subject to the Plan and the Plan Prospectus,
copies of which have been provided to me. Deferral elections that are contrary to the Plan or that are received after the Return
Date will not be effective. Capitalized terms that are not defined in this form will have the definitions given to them in the
Plan.
Signature:

2017 11 19 – For CY2018

Date:

Exhibit 10.3
SEVERANCE AGREEMENT
This SEVERANCE AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement ”) is made and entered into as of December 7, 2017 by and between
[ * ] (“ Executive ”) and Analogic Corporation (the “ Company ”).
WHEREAS, Executive is employed as a senior executive of the Company, and the Company desires to retain the services
of Executive; and
WHEREAS, the Company is entering into this Agreement in order to provide certain compensation and benefits to
Executive in the event Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated under certain circumstances.
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the Company and Executive agree as follows:
1.

Termination of Employment .
1.1

Death or Disability . Executive’s employment shall terminate automatically upon Executive’s death or Disability (as
defined below). If the Company determines in good faith that the Disability of Executive has occurred during the
Employment Period, it may provide Executive with written notice of its intention to terminate Executive’s employment.
In such event, Executive’s employment with the Company shall terminate effective on the 30th day after receipt of such
notice by Executive (the “ Disability Effective Date ”). “ Disability ” shall, unless otherwise required under applicable
law, mean the inability of Executive to perform the essential functions of Executive’s position(s) with the Company on a
full-time basis as a result of incapacity due to mental or physical illness, which inability exists for 12 or more weeks
during any rolling 12-month period.

1.2

By the Company . The Company may terminate Executive’s employment at any time, with or without Cause; provided,
however, that in the event the Company terminates Executive’s employment without Cause, the Company shall provide
at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Executive of such termination (the “ Company’s Notice Period ”). During
the Company’s Notice Period, Executive shall remain an employee of the Company, receiving Executive’s thenapplicable base salary and benefits, through the Date of Termination (as defined below). For purposes of this Agreement,
“ Cause ” means (a) any intentionally dishonest, illegal, or insubordinate conduct which is materially injurious to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or which results in an improper substantial personal benefit, (b) material breach by
Executive of any provision of any employment, nondisclosure, non-competition, or similar agreement or Company policy
to which Executive is a party or is bound, (c) Executive’s material nonperformance or gross dereliction of duty, or (d)
Executive’s conviction of or plea of guilty to a felony or any crime involving moral turpitude.

2.

1.3

By Executive . In the event Executive terminates Executive’s employment other than in connection with Executive’s
death or Disability, Executive shall provide at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Company of such
termination; provided, however, that the Company may elect to terminate Executive’s employment at any point during
such period, and such termination shall not constitute a termination by the Company (the applicable period, the “
Executive’s Notice Period ”). During Executive’s Notice Period, Executive shall remain an employee of the Company,
and shall receive Executive’s then-applicable base salary and benefits, through the Date of Termination.

1.4

Date of Termination . “ Date of Termination ” means: (i) if Executive’s employment ends other than for death or
Disability, Executive’s last day of employment with the Company and, (ii) if Executive’s employment is terminated by
reason of death or Disability, the date of Executive’s death or the Disability Effective Date, as the case may be.

Obligations of the Company upon Termination .
2.1

Termination for Any Reason or No Reason . In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment for any reason
or for no reason, the Company will pay to Executive (or to Executive’s estate) (i) the portion of Executive’s annualized
base salary that has accrued prior to such termination and has not yet been paid, (ii) an amount equal to the value of
Executive’s accrued unused vacation days, (iii) reimbursement for expenses properly incurred by Executive on behalf of
the Company prior to such termination and properly documented in accordance with Company policy, and (iv) to the
extent not theretofore paid or provided, any other amounts or benefits required to be paid or provided or which Executive
is eligible to receive under any plan or agreement of or with the Company through the Date of Termination (all such
amounts, collectively, the “ Accrued Obligations ”). The Accrued Obligations will be paid as required by law but in any
event promptly after termination or as provided by any applicable plan or agreement.

2.2

T ermination by the Company Other Than for Cause ; Other Than by Reason of Executive’s Death or Disabilit y; and
Other than in Connection with a Change in Control Event . Subject to Executive’s execution of a general release of
claims and reaffirmation agreement in substantially similar form to Exhibit A (“ Release and Re-affirmation Agreement
”), and such Release and Reaffirmation Agreement becoming irrevocable within forty-five (45) days following the Date
of Termination or such earlier date as may be specified in the Release Agreement (the “ Severance Conditions ”), if E
xecutive’s employment is terminated by the Company other than (i) for Cause; or (ii) by reason of Executive’s death or
Disability, and other than in connection with a Change in Control Event (as defined belo w) , then in addition to the
Accrued Obligations, Executive will receive the following severance pay and benefits (the “ Severance Pay and Benefits
”):
2.2.1

Base Salary Continuation . Continuation of Executive’s then applicable annualized base salary for a period of
twelve months following the Date of Termination (the “ Severance Period ”). Base Salary Continuation
payments will be made in approximately equal installments according to the Company’s then-current
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payroll practices (except as otherwise provided below in the case of amounts that are subject to a prior deferral
election ).
2.2.2

Benefits Continuation .
Subject to Executive’s timely election of continued medical, dental and vision care coverage under COBRA, the
Company will subsidize Executive’s COBRA premiums to continue Executive’s coverage (including coverage
for the Participant’s eligible dependents, if applicable) (the “ COBRA Premiums ”) during the Severance Period,
such that the Executive will be required to pay the contributions required of active employees during the
Severance Period.
The Severance Period will run concurrently with and does not extend the eighteen-month COBRA continuation
period.
During the Severance Period, an amount equal to the Company’s subsidy of Executive’s applicable COBRA
Premiums will be excluded from Executive’s income for tax purposes. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence,
if at any time the Company determines, in its sole discretion, that its COBRA premium subsidy reasonably could
result in the Company or Executive incurring additional costs, penalties or taxes under applicable law (including,
without limitation, Section 2716 of the Public Health Service Act and Section 105(h) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) then in lieu of paying the COBRA premium subsidy on behalf of
Executive, the Company will instead pay Executive on the last day of each remaining month for which the
Executive is entitled to the COBRA subsidy, a fully taxable cash payment equal to the COBRA subsidy for that
month, subject to applicable tax withholding.
The Company specifically reserves the right at its sole discretion to amend, suspend, discontinue or terminate its
medical, dental and vision care plan or any or all benefits under such plan at any time, without either the prior
consent of, or any prior notice to Executive, and to make or amend rules for administration of such plan.
After the Severance Period and during the remainder of the eighteen-month COBRA continuation period,
Executive may elect continued medical, dental and vision care coverage as may be provided pursuant to
COBRA (including coverage for his or her eligible dependents, if applicable), provided that Executive pays the
full premiums ( i.e., without subsidy from the Company) for the remainder of the COBRA continuation period
after the Severance Period.

2.2.3

Annual Incentive Award . A sum equal to Executive’s actual incentive award, if any, as calculated according to
the Company’s Annual Incentive Program for the fiscal year in which Executive’s termination occurs, payable at
such time, in such amount (if any), and in the manner provided thereunder.
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2.2.4

Outplacement Services . As elected by Executive on or before the date Executive executes the Release
Agreement, one of (i) outplacement services provided through a Company-approved plan and provider for a
period not to exceed the Severance Period , such services not to have a cost to the Company in excess of
$10,000.00 (the “ Outplacement Services ”); or (ii) a lump sum payment in the amount of $10,000.00. (the “
Outplacement Payment ”).

In no event will the Severance Pay and Benefits be paid or provided unless and until the date on which Release Agreement
becomes irrevocable and effective according to its terms (the “ Release Effective Date ”). Base Salary and Benefits
Continuation payable pursuant to this Section 2.2 shall commence on the first payroll date following the Release Effective
Date. The first installment will include (i) a lump sum payment in an amount equal to those Base Salary and Benefits
Continuation amounts accrued after the Date of Termination through the period covered by such first installment; and (ii)
if elected, the Outplacement Payment. The Outplacement Services, if elected, will be made available as soon as reasonably
practicable following the Release Effective Date. All other amounts will be payable in accordance with the payment
schedule applicable to each payment or benefit. In no event will any severance payments or benefits extend beyond the last
day of Executive’s second tax year following the tax year in with the Date of Termination occurs.

3.

2.3

Termination By the Company for Cause; By Reason of Executive’s Death or Disability; Or By Executive Other than for
Good Reason in Connection with a Change in Control Event . If Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company
for Cause, or by reason of Executive’s deat h or Disability, or by Executive for any reason other than for Good Reason
(as defined below) in connection with a Change in Control Event, this Agreement shall terminate without further
obligations to Executive or Executive’s legal representatives under this Agreement, other than for payment of the
Accrued Obligations.

2.4

Effect of Termination on Other Positions . If, on the Date of Termination, Executive is a member of the Company’s
Board of Directors (the “Board”) or the board of directors of any Affiliated Entity, or holds any other office or position
with the Company or any Affiliated Entity, Executive shall, unless otherwise requested by the Company, be deemed to
have resigned from all such offices and positions as of the Date of Termination. Executive agrees to execute such
documents and take such other actions as the Company may request to reflect such resignation.

Change in Control .
3.1

If, within twenty four (24) months following a Change in Control Event (the “ CIC Period”) , Executive’s employment is
terminated by the Company without Cause and not for death or Disability, or if Executive resigns Executive’s
employment for Good Reason, the Executive shall receive (i) the Accrued Obligations; and (ii) subject to the Severance
Conditions, (A) the Severance Pay and Benefits; and (B) an amount equal to
4

sixty percent (60%) of Executive’s most recent annualized base salary, p ayable on the first payroll date following the
Release Effective Date.
3.2

Notice of Termination . Following a Change in Control Event, any termination by the Company for Cause or by
Executive for Good Reason pursuant to this Agreement shall be communicated by a Notice of Termination (as defined
below) to the other party. A “ Notice of Termination ” means a written notice that (i) indicates the specific termination
provision in this Agreement relied upon, (ii) to the extent applicable, sets forth in reasonable detail the facts and
circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated,
and (iii) if the date of termination is other than the date of receipt of such notice, specifies the date of termination (which
shall be not more than 15 days after the giving of such notice). The failure by Executive or the Company to set forth in
the Notice of Termination any fact or circumstance that contributes to a showing of Good Reason or Cause, as the case
may be, shall not waive any right of Executive or the Company or preclude Executive or the Company from asserting
such fact or circumstance in enforcing Executive’s or the Company’s rights.

3.3

Change in Control Event . “ Change in Control Event ” means:
3.3.1

consummation of any merger or consolidation in which (i) the Company is a constituent party or (ii) a subsidiary
of the Company is a constituent party and the Company issues shares of its capital stock pursuant to such merger
or consolidation (except, in the case of both clauses (i) and (ii) above, any such merger or consolidation
involving the Company or a subsidiary in which the shares of capital stock of the Company outstanding
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation continue to represent, or are converted into or exchanged for
shares of capital stock that represent, immediately following such merger or consolidation and in approximately
the same relative proportions, at least 51% by voting power of the capital stock of (x) the surviving or resulting
corporation or (y) if the surviving or resulting corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of another corporation
immediately following such merger or consolidation, of the parent corporation of such surviving or resulting
corporation);

3.3.2

the issuance, sale or transfer, in a single transaction or series of related transactions, of capital stock representing
at least 51% of the voting power of the outstanding capital stock of the Company immediately following such
transaction;

3.3.3

the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company; or

3.3.4

a change in the composition of the Board that results in the Continuing Directors (as defined below) no longer
constituting a majority of the Board (or, if applicable, the Board of Directors of a successor corporation to the
Company), where the term “ Continuing Director ” means at any date a member of the Board (x) who was a
member of the Board on the date of the initial adoption of the Plan by the Board or (y) who was nominated or
elected subsequent to such date by at
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least a majority of the directors who were Continuing Directors at the time of such nomination or election or
whose election to the Board was recommended or endorsed by at least a majority of the directors who were
Continuing Directors at the time of such nomination or election; provided, however, that there shall be excluded
from this clause (y) any individual whose initial assumption of office occurred as a result of an actual or
threatened election contest with respect to the election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened
solicitation of proxies or consents, by or on behalf of a person other than the Board.
3.4

“ Good Reason ” means (i) the assignment to Executive of any responsibilities or duties inconsistent in any respect with
Executive’s Position and Duties (as defined below), excluding any action that is remedied by the Company promptly
after receipt of written notice given by Executive; (ii) any failure by the Company to provide any of the Ongoing
Compensation (as defined below), excluding any failure that is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt of
written notice given by Executive; (iii) the Company requiring Executive to be based at any location other than those
locations described in the Position and Duties; or (iv) any purported termination by the Company of Executive’s
employment other than for Cause, death , or Disability.

3.5

“Position and Duties” means (i) a position (including, without limitation, offices, titles, and reporting requirements),
authority, duties, and responsibilities that are at least commensurate in all material respects with the most significant of,
and the highest grade or level of, those that were held or exercised by Executive or assigned to Executive at any time
during the 120-day period immediately preceding the Change in Control Event, and (ii) services that are performed at the
location where Executive was employed immediately preceding the effective date of the Change in Control Event or any
other location less than 35 miles from Peabody, Massachusetts.

3.6

“Ongoing Compensation” means, in connection with the CIC Period, (i) an annualized base salary paid in accordance
with the Company’s usual and customary payroll practices, equal to the annualized base salary in effect immediately
prior to the Change in Control Event; (ii) eligibility for annual and long term bonuses in connection with the Company’s
then existing incentive plans; (iii) eligibility (including for Executive’s family, as the case may be) to participate in and
receive benefits under, all incentive, savings, retirement and welfare plans, practices, policies, and programs generally
applicable to the other similarly situated executives, but in no event shall such plans, practices, policies, and programs
provide Executive’s (or Executive’s family) with incentive opportunities, savings opportunities, retirement benefits
opportunities or welfare benefits that are, in each case, less favorable, in the aggregate, than the most favorable of the
corresponding opportunities that were provided by the Company for Executive under such plans, practices, policies, and
programs as were in effect at any time during the 120-day period immediately preceding the Change in Control Event;
(iv) prompt reimbursement for all reasonable business expenses incurred by Executive in accordance with the practices,
policies and procedures of the Company; and (v) paid vacation in accordance with the most favorable plans, practices,
policies and programs
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of the Company as were in effect for Executive at any time during the 120-day period immediately preceding the Change
in Control Event.
3.7

280G .
3.7.1

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or any other plan, arrangement or agreement to the
contrary, if any of the payments or benefits provided or to be provided by the Company or its affiliates to
Executive or for Executive’s benefit pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise (“ Covered Payments
”) constitute parachute payments (“ Parachute Payments ”) within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “ Code ”) and would, but for this Section 3.7 be subject to the excise
tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Code (or any successor provision thereto) or any similar tax imposed by
state or local law or any interest or penalties with respect to such taxes (collectively, the “ Excise Tax ”), then
prior to making the Covered Payments, a calculation shall be made comparing (A) the Net Benefit (as defined
below) to Executive of the Covered Payments after payment of the Excise Tax to (B) the Net Benefit to
Executive if the Covered Payments are limited to the extent necessary to avoid being subject to the Excise
Tax. Only if the amount calculated under (A) above is less than the amount under (B) above will the Covered
Payments be reduced to the minimum extent necessary to ensure that no portion of the Covered Payments is
subject to the Excise Tax (that amount, the “ Reduced Amount ”). “ Net Benefit ” shall mean the present value
of the Covered Payments net of all federal, state, local, foreign income, employment and excise taxes.

3.7.2

If there is a reduction pursuant to this Agreement, the Covered Payment reduction contemplated by the
preceding section 3.7.1 shall be implemented by determining the “Parachute Payment Ratio” (as defined below)
for each “parachute payment” and then reducing the “parachute payments” in order beginning with the
“parachute payment” with the highest Parachute Payment Ratio. For “parachute payments” with the same
Parachute Payment Ratio, such “parachute payments” shall be reduced based on the time of payment of such
“parachute payments,” with amounts having later payment dates being reduced first. For “parachute payments”
with the same Parachute Payment Ratio and the same time of payment, such “parachute payments” shall be
reduced on a pro rata basis (but not below zero) prior to reducing “parachute payments” with a lower Parachute
Payment Ratio. The term “Parachute Payment Ratio” shall mean a fraction the numerator of which is the value
of the applicable “parachute payment” that must be taken into account by Executive for purposes of Section
4999(a) of the Code, and the denominator of which is the actual amount to be received by Executive in respect
of the applicable “parachute payment”. For example, in the case of an equity grant that is treated as contingent
on the change in control because the time at which the payment is made or the payment vests is accelerated, the
denominator shall be determined by reference to the fair market value of the equity at the acceleration date, and
not in accordance with the methodology for determining the
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value of accelerated payments set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1Q/A-24(b) or (c).
3.7.3

Any determination required under this Section 3.7, including whether any payments or benefits are parachute
payments, shall be made by the Company in its sole discretion. Executive shall provide the Company with such
information and documents as the Company may reasonably request in order to make a determination under this
Section. The Company’s determination shall be final and binding on Executive.

4.

No Mitigation . In no event, except as set forth expressly in this or another agreement signed by Executive, shall Executive be
obligated to seek other employment or take any other action by way of mitigation of the amounts payable to Executive under
any of the provisions of this Agreement and, subject to the aforesaid exception, such amounts shall not be reduced whether or
not Executive obtains other employment.

5.

Restrictive Covenants . As a condition of the effectiveness of this Agreement, Executive shall , contemporaneous with
Executive’s execution of this Agreement, execute and deliver to the Company the Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B.

6.

Payments Subject to Section 409A . Subject to the provisions in this Section 6, any severance payments or benefits under this
Agreement shall begin only upon the date of Executive’s “separation from service” (determined as set forth below) which
occurs on or after the date of termination of employment. The following rules shall apply with respect to distribution of the
payments and benefits, if any, to be provided to Executive under this Agreement:
6.1

It is intended that each installment of the severance payments and benefits provided under this Agreement shall be treated
as a separate “payment” for purposes of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the guidance issued thereunder
(“Section 409A”). Neither Executive nor the Company shall have the right to accelerate or defer the delivery of any such
payments or benefits except to the extent specifically permitted or required by Section 409A.

6.2

If, as of the date of Executive’s “separation from service” from the Company, Executive is not a “specified employee”
(within the meaning of Section 409A), then each installment of the severance payments and benefits shall be made on the
dates and terms set forth in this Agreement

6.3

If, as of the date of Executive’s “separation from service” from the Company, Executive is a “specified employee”
(within the meaning of Section 409A), then:
6.3.1

Each installment of the severance payments and benefits due under this Agreement that, in accordance with the
dates and terms set forth herein, will in all circumstances, regardless of when the separation from service occurs,
be paid within the short-term deferral period (as defined under Section 409A) shall be
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treated as a short-term deferral within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(b)(4) to the
maximum extent permissible under Section 409A and shall be paid at the time and in the matter set forth in this
Agreement; and
6.3.2

7.

Each installment of the severance payments and benefits due under this Agreement that is not described in
paragraph 6.3.1 above and that would, absent this subsection, be paid within the six-month period following
Executive’s “separation from service” from the Company shall not be paid until the date that is six months and
one day after such separation from service (or, if earlier, Executive’s death), with any such installments that are
required to be delayed being accumulated during the six-month period and paid in a lump sum on the date that is
six months and one day following Executive’s separation from service and any subsequent installments, if any,
being paid in accordance with the dates and terms set forth herein; provided , however , that the preceding
provisions of this sentence shall not apply to any installment of severance payments and benefits if and to the
maximum extent that such installment is deemed to be paid under a separation pay plan that does not provide for
a deferral of compensation by reason of the application of Treasury Regulation 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii) (relating to
separation pay upon an involuntary separation from service). Any installments that qualify for the exception
under Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii) must be paid no later than the last day of Executive’s
second taxable year following the taxable year in which the separation from service occurs.

6.4

The determination of whether and when Executive’s separation from service from the Company has occurred shall be
made in a manner consistent with, and based on the presumptions set forth in, Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A1(h). Solely for purposes of this paragraph (d), “Company” shall include all persons with whom the Company would be
considered a single employer as determined under Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-(h)(3).

6.5

All reimbursements and in-kind benefits provided under this Agreement shall be made or provided in accordance with
the requirements of Section 409A to the extent that such reimbursements or in-kind benefits are subject to Section 409A,
including, where applicable, the requirement that (i) any reimbursement is for expenses incurred during Executive’s
lifetime (or during a shorter period of time specified in this Agreement), (ii) the amount of expenses eligible for
reimbursement during a calendar year may not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement in any other calendar year,
(iii) the reimbursement of an eligible expense will be made on or before the last day of the calendar year following the
year in which the expense is incurred, and (iv) the right to reimbursement is not subject to set off or liquidation or
exchange for any other benefit.

6.6

The Company may withhold (or cause to be withheld) from any payments made under this Agreement, all federal, state,
city or other taxes as shall be required to be withheld pursuant to any law or governmental regulation or ruling.

Return of Company Property . Upon termination of employment for any reason, Executive shall promptly return to the
Company any keys, credit cards, passes, confidential documents
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or material, computer equipment, or other property belonging to the Company, and Executive shall also return all writings,
files, records, correspondence, notebooks, notes and other documents and things (including any copies thereof) containing
confidential information or relating to the business or proposed business of the Company or the Affiliated Entities or
containing any trade secrets relating to the Company or the Affiliated Entities. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the
term “trade secrets” shall have the meaning ascribed to it under the Uniform Trade Secrets Act. Executive agrees to represent
in writing to the Company upon termination of employment that he has complied with the foregoing provisions of this
Section.
8.

Assistance with Claims . Executive agrees that, consistent with Executive’s business and personal affairs, during and after his
employment by the Company he will assist the Company and the Affiliated Entities in the defense of any claims, or potential
claims that may be made or are threatened to be made against any of them in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative (a “ Proceeding ”), and will assist the Company and the Affiliated Entities in the
prosecution of any claims that may be made by the Company or the Affiliated Entities in any Proceeding, to the extent that
such claims may relate to Executive’s employment or the period of Executive’s employment by the Company. The Company
agrees to reimburse Executive for all of Executive’s reasonable out-of-pocket expenses associated with such assistance,
including travel expenses. Any amounts to be paid to Executive pursuant to this Section 8 shall be paid by the Company no
later than thirty (30) days of the date on which Executive provides documentation to the Company that such expenses were
incurred.

9.

Severance Plan; Other Agreements .

10.

9.1

Executive shall not be eligible to receive severance or similar post-employment payments or benefits under the Analogic
Corporation Severance Plan for Management Employees or any other severance plan, program or policy that may be
adopted or maintained by the Company

9.2

The employment letter agreement between Executive and the Company dated [
], (the “ Letter Agreement ”) shall
survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect in accordance with its original
terms; provided , however , that any provisions of the Letter Agreement relating to severance and post-employment
payments and benefits shall be superseded hereby in their entirety and shall hereafter cease to be of any force or effect.] 1

Successors . This Agreement is personal to Executive and shall not be assignable by Executive without the prior written
consent of the Company. This Agreement and any rights and benefits hereunder shall inure to the benefit of and be
enforceable by Executive’s legal representatives, heirs or legatees. This Agreement and any rights and benefits hereunder
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company and its successors

1 This section may be modified to reflect the employment arrangements between the Company and the applicable Executive.
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and assigns, including any corporation with which or into which the Company may be merged or which may succeed to its
assets or business.
11.

Miscellaneous .
11.1 Entire Agreement/Modification/Choice of Law/Enforceability/Jury Waiver . Both Executive and the Company
acknowledge that this Agreement is the entire agreement of the parties, and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous
discussions, understandings, or agreements, with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be amended
only in a written agreement duly executed by the parties hereto. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of such
Commonwealth, without giving effect to conflict of law principles. Both parties agree that any action, demand, claim or
counterclaim relating to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or to its formation or breach, or to Executive’s
employment or the termination thereof, shall be commenced only in Massachusetts in a court of competent jurisdiction,
and further acknowledge that venue for such actions shall lie exclusively in Massachusetts. Both parties hereby waive
and renounce in advance any right to a trial by jury in connection with such legal action.
11.2 Withholding . The Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such Federal, state, local or
foreign taxes as shall be required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.
11.3 No Guarantee of any Tax Consequence s. The Company makes no guarantee of any tax consequences with respect to
any payment hereunder including, without limitation, under Section 409A of the Code.
11.4 Severability . The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement will be construed as if such invalid or
unenforceable provision were omitted (but only to the extent that such provision cannot be appropriately reformed or
modified).
11.5 Waiver of Breach . No waiver by any party hereto of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any other party, or
of compliance with any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by such other party, will operate or be
construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by such other party of any similar or dissimilar provisions and conditions
at the same or any prior or subsequent time.
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11.6 Notices . Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered
personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or prepaid overnight courier to
the parties at the addresses set forth below (or such other addresses as shall be specified by the parties by like notice):
to the Company:
Analogic Corporation
8 Centennial Drive
Peabody, MA 01960
Attention: President and CEO
with a copy to:
Analogic Corporation
8 Centennial Drive
Peabody, MA 01960
Attention: Vice President and General Counsel
or to Executive:
At the most recent address maintained
by the Company in its personnel records
11.7 Change of Address. Each party, by written notice furnished to the other party, may modify the applicable delivery
address, except that notice of change of address shall be effective only upon receipt. Such notices, demands, claims and
other communications shall be deemed given in the case of delivery by overnight service with guaranteed next day
delivery, the next day or the day designated for delivery; or in the case of certified or registered U.S. mail, five days after
deposit in the U.S. mail; provided, however, that in no event shall any such communications be deemed to be given later
than the date they are actually received.
11.8 Not Employment Contract . Executive acknowledges that this Agreement does not constitute a contract of employment,
does not imply that the Company will continue Executive’s employment for any period of time and does not change the
at-will nature of Executive’s employment.
11.9 Survivorship . Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall survive such expiration or other termination to the extent necessary to carry out the intentions of the
parties under this Agreement.
11.10 Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in separate facsimile or electronic counterparts, each of which is
deemed to be an original and all of which taken together constitute one and the same agreement.
12

11.11 Representations . Executive hereby acknowledges that he understands this Agreement and enters into this Agreement
voluntarily .
IN WITNESS THEREOF, Executive has hereunto set Executive’s hand, and the Company has caused this Agreement to
be executed in its name and on its behalf, all as of the day and year first above written.
ANALOGIC CORPORATION

Name

Fred B. Parks
President and CEO
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Exhibit A
RELEASE AND RE-AFFIRMATION AGREEMENT
This Release and Re-Affirmation Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made between Analogic Corporation (the “Company”), and the
undersigned executive (“Executive”) (the Company and Executive are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”) as of [INSERT DATE]
(the “Execution Date”).
In consideration of the amounts and benefits under Executive’s Severance Agreement dated [INSERT DATE of Severance Agreement] and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Executive agrees as follows:

1. Release . Executive (defined for the purpose of Paragraphs 1 and 2 as Executive and Executive’s agents,
representatives, attorneys, assigns, heirs, executors, and administrators) fully and unconditionally releases the Released Parties (defined as the
Company, its parent, affiliates and any of its or their respective past or present employees, agents, insurers, attorneys, administrators, officials,
directors, shareholders, members, managers, managing members, divisions, parents, subsidiaries, predecessors, successors, employee benefit
plans, and the sponsors, fiduciaries, administrators, insurers or committees of such employee benefit plans) from, and agrees not to bring any
action, proceeding or suit against, or file any claim with, any of the Released Parties regarding, any and all liability, claims, breaches,
demands, actions, causes of action, suits, grievances, debts, sums of money, agreements, promises, damages, back and front pay, benefits,
costs, expenses, attorneys’ fees, and remedies of any type (collectively, “Claims”), directly or indirectly, regarding any act or failure to act
that occurred up to and including the date on which Executive signs this Agreement, including, without limitation, all Claims arising or that
arose or may have arisen out of or in connection with Executive’s employment with or separation from the Company, and including but not
limited to Claims for: (i) violation of any written or unwritten contract, agreement, understanding, policy, benefit, retirement or pension plan,
severance plan, other employee benefit plan, or covenant of any kind, or failure to pay wages, bonuses, employee benefits, other
compensation, attorneys’ fees, damages, or any other remuneration; discrimination or retaliation on the basis of any characteristic or trait
protected under law (including but not limited to race, color, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, religion, disability, marital or parental
status, age, union activity or other protected activity), (ii) other denial of protection or benefits, or other breach or violation, under any statute,
ordinance, executive order, or regulation (including but not limited to claims under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights
Act of 1991, the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Family and Medical Leave
Act, the Workers’ Adjustment and Retraining Notification, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
the Massachusetts Fair Employment Practices Law, M.G.L. ch. 151B; the Massachusetts Civil Rights Act, M.G.L. ch. 12 §11H et seq. , the
Massachusetts Equal Rights Act, M.G.L. ch. 93 § 102 et seq. , the Massachusetts Privacy Statute, M.G.L. ch. 214 §1B; the Massachusetts
Sexual Harassment Statute, M.G.L. ch. 214 §1C; the Massachusetts Equal Pay Act, M.G.L. ch. 149 §105A, the Massachusetts Wage Act,
M.G.L. ch. 149 §§ 148, 150 et seq.; the Massachusetts Minimum Fair Wage Law, M.G.L. ch. 151, any claims that may be released under
Massachusetts labor statutes, M.G.L. ch. 149, New Hampshire Law Against Discrimination – N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. §354-A:1 et seq., New
Hampshire Whistleblower Protection – N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. §275-E:1 et seq., New Hampshire Equal Pay Law – N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann.
§275:36 et seq., New Hampshire AIDS Education Act – N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. §141-F:5 et seq., New Hampshire Genetic Testing Law – N.H.
Rev. Stat. Ann. §141-H:1, New Hampshire Smokers’ Rights Law – N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. §275:37-a, New Hampshire Wage Payment and
Work Hour Laws – N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. § 279:1 et seq.), and (iii) any and all Claims under any other federal or state statute or regulation, or
any local ordinance, law or regulation, or any Claim that was or could have been asserted under common law .
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Executive represents and warrants that Executive has no outstanding court, agency, or administrative claims for damages against any
Released Party . Notwithstanding this paragraph 1 to the contrary, t his Agreement does not include, and Executive does not waive, any
rights or Claims: (iv ) that may arise after Executive signs this Agreement; (v ) for alleged workplace injuries or occupational disease that
arise under any state’s workers’ compensation laws; (v i ) that cannot be released by law; (v ii ) to enforce this Agreement; or (v iii ) to
participate in any proceedings before a self-regulatory organization, or state or federal regulatory authority or administrative agency (e.g.,
EEOC, SEC, etc.). Executive agrees, however, to waive and release any right to receive any monetary award from any such
proceedings. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit either party’s right to respond accurately and fully to any question, inquiry
or request for information when required by legal process, or from initiating communications directly with, or responding to any inquiry from,
or providing testimony before, any self-regulatory organization or state or federal regulatory authority or administrative agency, regarding the
Company, Executive’s employment, or this Agreement. In such instances, Executive is not required to contact the Company regarding the
subject matter of any such communications before disclosing information.

2. Specific Release of ADEA Claims . In further consideration of the payments and benefits provided to the
Executive in this Agreement, the Executive hereby irrevocably and unconditionally fully and forever waive, release and discharge the
Released Parties from any and all Claims, whether known or unknown, from the beginning of time to the date of the Executive’s execution of
this Agreement arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”), as amended, and its implementing regulations. By
signing this Agreement, the Executive hereby acknowledges and confirms that: (i) the Executive has read this Agreement in its entirety and
understands all of its terms; (ii) the Executive has been advised of and has availed him or herself of the right to consult an attorney prior to
executing this Agreement; (iii) the Executive knowingly, freely and voluntarily assents to all of the terms and conditions set out in this
Agreement including, without limitation, the waiver, release and covenants contained herein; (iv) the Executive is executing this Agreement,
including the waiver and release, in exchange for good and valuable consideration in addition to anything of value to which Executive is
otherwise entitled; (v) the Executive was given at least [twenty-one (21)/forty-five (45)] days to consider the terms of this Agreement and
consult with an attorney, although Executive may sign it sooner if desired; (vi) the Executive understands that he or she has seven (7) days
from the date Executive signs this Agreement to revoke the release in this paragraph by delivering notice of revocation to [NAME] at the
Company, [EMPLOYER ADDRESS] by [e-mail/fax/overnight delivery/[OTHER METHOD OF DELIVERY]] before the end of such sevenday period; and (vii) the Executive understands that the release contained in this paragraph does not apply to rights and claims that may arise
after the date on which the Executive signs this Agreement.
3. Non-admission . Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as an admission of wrongdoing or liability on the
part of the Company or any Released Party.
4. Reaffirmation . Executive reaffirms and acknowledges Executive’s continuing obligations under the: (i) the
Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement dated [INSERT DATE], (ii) Executive’s Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation
Agreement required by Section 5 of the Severance Agreement (iii) any other post-employment restrictive covenants between Executive and
the Company, including those in the Executive’s equity awards; and (iv) Section 7 (Return of Company Property) and Section 8 (Assistance
with Claims) of the Severance Agreement, all of which remain in full force and effect according to their original terms.
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5. Miscellaneous .
(a) Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
both parties and their respective successors and assigns, including any corporation with which, or into which, the Company may be merged or
which may succeed to the Company’s assets or business, provided, however, that the obligations of Executive are personal and shall not be
assigned by Executive. Executive expressly consents to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement for the benefit of the Company or any
subsidiary or affiliate thereof to whose employ Executive may be transferred without the necessity that this Agreement be re-signed at the
time of such transfer.
(b) Severability . In case any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or otherwise
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall in no way be affected or impaired thereby.
(c) Waivers . No delay or omission by the Company in exercising any right under this
Agreement will operate as a waiver of that or any other right. A waiver or consent given by the Company on any one occasion is effective
only in that instance and will not be construed as a bar to or waiver of any right on any other occasion.
(d) Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (without reference to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof). Any action, suit, or other
legal proceeding which is commenced to resolve any matter arising under or relating to any provision of this Agreement shall be commenced
only in a court of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (or, if appropriate, a federal court located within Massachusetts), and the Company
and Executive each consent to the jurisdiction of such a court. THE COMPANY AND EXECUTIVE EACH HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR OTHER LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING UNDER OR
RELATING TO ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT.
(e) Entire Agreement; Amendment . This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, written
or oral, between Executive and the Company relating to the subject matter hereof; provided, however that nothing in this Agreement will
void, supersede or alter the terms of the Severance Agreement, which remains in full force and effect according to its original terms. This
Agreement may not be modified, changed or discharged in whole or in part, except by an agreement in writing signed by Executive and the
Company.
(f) Captions . The captions of the sections of this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only and in no way define, limit or affect the scope or substance of any section of this Agreement.
6. Effective Date . This Agreement shall become effective on the eighth (8th) day after the Executive and the
Company execute this Agreement unless the Executive revokes this Agreement in accordance with paragraph 2. Such date shall be the
Effective Date of this Agreement. No payments due to the Executive under the Severance Agreement shall be made or begin before the
Effective Date.
EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE HAS CAREFULLY READ THIS AGREEMENT AND UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES
TO ALL OF THE PROVISIONS IN THIS AGREEMENT.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Executive and Company have ex ecuted this Agreement as of the Execution Date above.
ANALOGIC CORPORATION
By
Name:
Title:

[NAME OF AUTHORIZED OFFICER]
[TITLE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICER]

EXECUTIVE
Name:

[ Attachment A
Older Workers Benefit Protection Act Disclosure Notice
(if applicable) ]
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Exhibit B
NON-COMPETITION AND NON-SOLICITATION AGREEMENT
This Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made between Analogic Corporation (the
“Company”), and the undersigned executive (“Executive”).
In consideration of this Severance Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, Executive agrees as follows:

1. Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation . While Executive is employed by the Company and for a period of one
year after the cessation of such employment for any reason, Executive will not directly or indirectly:
(a) Engage or assist others in engaging in any business or enterprise (whether as owner, partner,
officer, director, employee, consultant, investor, lender or otherwise, except as the holder of not more than 1% of the outstanding stock of a
publicly-held company) that (i) is competitive with the business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including but not limited to any
business or enterprise that develops, manufactures, markets, licenses, sells or provides any product or service that competes with any product
or service developed, manufactured, marketed, licensed, sold or provided, or planned to be developed, manufactured, marketed, licensed, sold
or provided, by the Company or any of its subsidiaries while Executive was employed by the Company, and (ii) conducts business in any
territory in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries conducts business, or plans to conduct business, at the time Executive ceases to be
employed by the Company; or
(b) Either alone or in association with others, solicit, divert or take away, or attempt to divert or
take away, the business or patronage of any of the clients, customers, or business partners of the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
were contacted, solicited, or served by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the 12-month period prior to the cessation of Executive’s
employment with the Company; or
(c) Either alone or in association with others (i) solicit, induce or attempt to induce, any
employee or independent contractor of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to terminate his or her employment or other engagement with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or (ii) hire, or recruit or attempt to hire, or engage or attempt to engage as an independent contractor,
any person who was employed or otherwise engaged by the Company or any of its subsidiaries at any time during the term of Executive’s
employment with the Company; provided , that this clause (ii) shall not apply to the recruitment or hiring or other engagement of any
individual whose employment or other engagement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries has been terminated for a period of six
months or longer, or, in the case of an independent contractor, if engaging such independent contractor would not interfere with such
independent contractor’s provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
(d) Extension . If Executive violates the provisions of any of the preceding paragraphs of this
Section 1, Executive shall continue to be bound by the restrictions set forth in such paragraph until a period of one year has expired without
any violation of such provisions.
2. Miscellaneous .
(a) Equitable Remedies . Executive acknowledges that the restrictions contained in this
Agreement are necessary for the protection of the business and goodwill of the Company and its
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subsidiaries and are considered by Executive to be reasonable for such purpose. Executive agrees that any breach or threatened breach of this
Agreement is likely to cause the Company and its subsidiaries substantial and irrevocable damage which is difficult to measure. Therefore, in
the event of any such breach or threatened breach, Executive agrees that the Company, in addition to such other remedies which may be
available, shall have the right to obtain an injunction from a court restraining such a breach or threatened breach without posting a bond and
the right to specific performance of the provisions of this Agreement and Executive hereby waives the adequacy of a remedy at law as a
defense to such relief.

(b) Obligations to Third Parties . Executive acknowledges and represents that this Agreement
and Executive’s employment with the Company will not violate any continuing obligation Executive has to any former employer or other
third party.
(c) Disclosure of this Agreement . Executive hereby authorizes the Company to notify others,
including but not limited to customers of the Company and any of its subsidiaries and any of Executive’s future employers or prospective
business associates, of the terms and existence of this Agreement and Executive’s continuing obligations hereunder.
(d) Not Employment Contract . Executive acknowledges that this Agreement does not
constitute a contract of employment, does not imply that the Company will continue his employment for any period of time and does not
change the at-will nature of Executive’s employment.
(e) Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
both parties and their respective successors and assigns, including any corporation with which, or into which, the Company may be merged or
which may succeed to the Company’s assets or business, provided, however, that the obligations of Executive are personal and shall not be
assigned by Executive. Executive expressly consents to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement for the benefit of the Company or any
subsidiary or affiliate thereof to whose employ Executive may be transferred without the necessity that this Agreement be re-signed at the
time of such transfer.\
(f) Interpretation . If any restriction set forth in Section 1 is found by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable because it extends for too long a period of time or over too great a range of activities or in too broad a
geographic area, it shall be interpreted to extend only over the maximum period of time, range of activities or geographic area as to which it
may be enforceable.
(g) Severability . In case any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or otherwise
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall in no way be affected or impaired thereby.
(h) Waivers . No delay or omission by the Company in exercising any right under this
Agreement will operate as a waiver of that or any other right. A waiver or consent given by the Company on any one occasion is effective
only in that instance and will not be construed as a bar to or waiver of any right on any other occasion.
(i) Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (without reference to the conflicts of laws provisions thereof). Any action, suit, or other
legal proceeding which is commenced to resolve any matter arising under or relating to any provision of this Agreement shall be commenced
only in a court of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (or, if appropriate, a federal court located within Massachusetts), and the Company
and Executive each consent to the jurisdiction of such a court. THE COMPANY AND EXECUTIVE EACH HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN
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ANY ACTION, SUIT OR OTHER LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING UNDER OR RELATING TO ANY PROVISION OF THIS
AGREEMENT.

(j) Entire Agreement; Amendment . This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, written or
oral, between Executive and the Company relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified, changed or
discharged in whole or in part, except by an agreement in writing signed by Executive and the Company. Executive agrees that any change or
changes in Executive’s duties, salary or compensation after the signing of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or scope of this
Agreement.
(k) Captions . The captions of the sections of this Agreement are for convenience of reference
only and in no way define, limit or affect the scope or substance of any section of this Agreement.
EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE HAS CAREFULLY READ THIS AGREEMENT AND UNDERSTANDS AND
AGREES TO ALL OF THE PROVISIONS IN THIS AGREEMENT.

EXECUTIVE
Name:
Date:
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)/RULE 15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED
I, Fred B. Parks, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Analogic Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: December 7, 2017
/s/ Fred B. Parks
Fred B. Parks
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)/RULE 15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED
I, Michael J. Bourque, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Analogic Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: December 7, 2017
/s/ Michael J. Bourque
Michael J. Bourque
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and
Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION
906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Analogic Corporation (the “Company”) for the quarter ended October 31, 2017 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Fred B. Parks, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to the best of his knowledge:
(1)

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: December 7, 2017
/s/ Fred B. Parks
Fred B. Parks
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Analogic Corporation (the “Company”) for the quarter ended October 31, 2017 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Michael J. Bourque, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial and
Accounting Officer, and Treasurer, of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to the best of his knowledge:
(1)

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: December 7, 2017
/s/ Michael J. Bourque
Michael J. Bourque
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

